NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING and REGULAR MEETING
February 14, 2017
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL
STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing and Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City
Council will be held on Tuesday, February 14,2017 at 6:00 p.m, at the City of Montgomery City Hall,
101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING:
Convene into Public Hearing:

1. For the purpose of giving all interested persons the right to appear and be heard on the proposed
annexation by the City of Montgomery, Texas of the following described land: All that certain
14.5003 acre tract of land, more or less, situated in the John H. Corner Survey, Abstract No. 8,
Montgomery County, Texas.

Reconvene into Regular Session:

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action
on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time
allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA:
2. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Regular Meeting held on January 24, 2017.

3. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY EMERGENCY
COMMUNCIATION DISTRICT AS ADDRESSING AUTHORITY.




CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

4. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:;
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, SELECTING
ADMINISTRATIVE AND ENGINEERING SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR A 2017-2018
TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RELIEF
PROJECT.

5. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE

SUBMISSION OF A TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
PROGRAM APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR
BRIDGE REPAIRS AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACT AS
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL
MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM.

6. Consideration and possible action regarding amending the 2016-2017 City Operating Budget,
and if necessary, schedule a public hearing to be held regarding a Budget Amendment.

7. Consideration and possible action for the approval of the Certificate of Acceptance, including
fiscal guarantee, of water, sanitary sewer, drainage and paving improvements to Terra Vista,
Section One Subdivision,

8. Consideration and possible action for the approval of the Certificate of Acceptance, including
fiscal guarantee, of water, and sanitary sewer to Waterstone, Section Two, Subdivision.

9. Consideration and possible action for the approval of the Certificate of Acceptance of lift
station to Waterstone, Section Two, and Terra Vista Subdivisions.

10. Consideration and possible action regarding authorizing a Utility and Economic Feasibility
Study for the southwest corner of FM 2854 and SH 105 regarding The Shoppes at Montgomery.

11. Consideration and possible action regarding a letter of authorization to LDC Gas Company for
implementation of a temporary surcharge to recover relocation costs due to relocation of Lone
Star Bend Street, subject to the Railroad Commission approval of the surcharge.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.







ITEM# 1
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount;
Department:
Exhibits: public hearing notice with map
Prepared By: Jack Yates attached
City Administrator

Date Prepared: February 4, 2017

Public hearing regarding annexation of KENROCK FOURTEEN, LLC 14.503 acre tract of
land

The public hearing is for the public to comment. Council should say little or nothing.

Listen to the any public comment and consider

Approved By

Department Manager Date:
Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 4, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 1


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The City of Montgomery City Council will hold a Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. on the
14 day of February, 2017 at the City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville
Road, in Montgomery, Texas in the City Council Chambers for the purpose of giving
all interested persons the right to appear and be heard on the proposed annexation
by the City of Montgomery, Texas of the following described land: All that certain
14.5003 acre tract of land, more or less, situated in the John H. Corner Survey,
Abstract No. 8, Montgomery County, Texas.

/sl Susan Hensley, City Secretary
City of Montgomery, Texas



1 4 1 \ \ M A S
i | ! \ \ ¥ / B
~—_ torsa
i \ ; A A iors \ = ’L-“
= B LAz Bt
i | VRS o A cluim S a7 dives cnATed of J i
AR i | | R e | 2 e
= — 1 8452, SEIT 113
Sl 1 S | EEea
'1| 1 1 g C.2 ] \
\ i
{ o rom ) =y ’
(laah = 100 1, -.h__,_i ll A0 3y u.ww\lo S
] oIty OF MoNTAOMERY !
H ) CITY LIMITS |
| i G
| ]
i x )
1 o
i g B
] #F0
?I f STERIAT CREEE &
1
i ]
il 1
&
(] £
-1 %g wrar
= CALD 14438 dgeey 5 e
"l FHO $/8" LA Wy ENERAL 5 22 -
- _.'n' TAMPED WTSM 4070° AL FoATY (e \ e
i BERRESS6" 16T E-0.24' CF. 7006020050, KPR Mo L—— -
I 0. 112" 18, 182003 AL —— 1or 22
’g wicap (83183250, F7 \ Ll X~
-
] \ /o \
oy S
4 T R B e e
-1 : o
.r",‘l sy wnsth A 5 —._‘/”'\
I RAT T & iy
FND. 5/8° | R Wycar CF. BSOMSE RER WET
STAVPED WIS\ 2070
BUAASSESOTI E- 0 g
[ O, St S
! F 7 = Lor sy McAns e
+ v, ) i — M T
ER - —~
; F/ / VONTCOVERF RETAL e i, . g o1 3
5.‘@;", (SIS 1 SOOI ves o) g J,’ . _._-5:— <
’ (82,397 EQuieT reen) gl 1 —— R
tosw - N f WAL prim cad o oine e -
Lo i = L—— -~ e
/ N T "
& ey
=
o
\ e
e R RLA ) \ \EETEEr
1535 24 " pel Y
Nasa7syy 7 s =L iR
sy ;I 2 i e i ; bj s
L 5 e W £ SITE BENCHMARK ) )
e =<
7 ~ 2 sy ‘-}é-_
- o & i < ‘—::_‘_‘_ f‘,
G i STATE Gy, 5 4 -~
& Moy py, ! 105 cITyY OF
ooty A TS 067 Ao ] ANW“"“"
\/;131‘:‘1 CF. 1008 BER WL
NOTE *A% — AWK O — @
ALL OF CALLED 6,202 ACRES APPEARS To Vot BR-IAR 60 mend sk
BE WITHIN THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY “ﬁﬁ’u“%"&?@m&'
CITY LIMITS AT TIME OF SURVEY. B T
— EEMCHUUK Ok — @
a1 rm‘h
mﬂﬂm‘lﬂ“ 1]
P e St O o,
GENERAL NOTES
s pasts a s—e—
s i —
febindy

BTG bose o1 Teay Siate Pars Coorarats Sysars, Gt Zona, N Armarkan Do 1AL

Lmrﬁivnlm-rua:’;’_wgnh-\m"w!
g grovided s

reie
Wi vl

101 £ 10, AT visley

1 Bt Faa

P4 St cxat ot
brtn persg Inmuh*‘luﬁwr:\:r:\e;&ﬁ:l
2 s redh,

Sl ¥ g varasa woen.
& B A B be 1mz3 e bty ppeen,

Lam)

wartacy,

Monlgarnery
2 2]
VICINITY MAP
18
PEV IR, 13%)
CURVE TABLE
NO. | LenGTH | Raoms | oeuTa [ O4o. sc. CHDRD
I= 15204 | 2iides | soraw | wutivare| tore
LINE TABLE UNETABLE UNETABLE

HO | BEARING | LENGTH HO.| BeamiNG | LEnGTH 10.| searmiG |iengTH
N EECTXER e O O e e M S T e
| Wit | s | @] s | an
u et | ow | [ [zousw] o
wlraisee | me | [mloonrw] an
s [isionw an | [ swmre | ww
ulhemre | on | (@] omwer| mm
0 T N I ) I
u [wwest e | |G| sermare | oae
[ i | mn | [wlewer e
wl s [ a0 | [wwre: [ ws
wiSimnve | wn | [@] omrer | s
il wmirs [ wew | [Gi]sewerw | e
i) sarewd | wumn el Rl T
(o[ e | [ amanci] on
o] siware | wn | [m]ssee | ns
uilVisare | wn | [ vman | ug
W [virrirw] oe ] for [
[0 o e n
[0 T Em
(o0 YT e S

CITY OF MONTGOMERY

ANNEXATION EXHIBIT

OF 14,5003 ACRES
(631,632 SQUARE FEET)

BEING ALL OF A GALLED 14.498 ACRES
IN THE
JOHN CORNER SURVEY, A-8
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

DECEMBER 2016

TOWN & COUNTRY SURVEYORS




MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

January 24, 2017

ITEM# 2

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones
John Champagne, Jr.
T.J. Wilkerson
Rebecca Huss

Dave McCorquodale

Absent: Jon Bickford

Also Present: Jack Yates

Larry Foerster

INVOCATION

John Champagne gave the invocation.

Mayor

City Council Place # 2
City Council Place # 3
City Council Place # 4
City Council Place # 5

City Council Place # 1

City Administrator
City Attorney

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking. each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action

on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers alone with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

Mayor Jones recognized some members of a Boy Scout Troop that were present, and asked them to

introduce themselves.

Mr. Barry Arnette from Troop 772 and Mr. Cate Sampler from Troop 772 introduced themselves.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 2


There were no other comments made.

CONSENT AGENDA:

l.

Matters relfated to the approval of minutes for the public hearing and regular meeting held on

January 10, 2017.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution;

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
SEEKING DESIGNATION AS A MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR WASTEWATER
COLLECTION AND TREATMENT WITHIN ITS CITY LIMITS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT; PROVIDING A TEXAS
OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE: AND PROVIDING AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE
DATE UPON PASSAGE,

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER ENTERGY SERVICE AREA CITIES

IN MATTERS CONCERNING ENTERGY TEXAS, INC. AT THE PUBLIC UTILITIES

COMMISSION OF TEXAS AND THE FEDERAIL ENERGY REGULATORY
COMMISSION IN 2017.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR THE
HOLDING OF A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 6, 2017, FOR THE
PURPOSE OF ELECTING THREE (3) CITY COUNCIT. MEMBERS, PLACES 1, 3 AND 5;
APPROVING ELECTION SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH MONTGOMERY COUNTY,
TEXAS: AND PROVIDING DETAILS RELATING TO THE HOLDING OF SUCH

ELECTION.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the Election Services Agreement by

and between the City of Montgomery and Montgomery County. Texas.

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the Joint Election Agreement and

Montgomery County Elections

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




7. Consideration and possible action authorizing the execution of construction contracts with Big

State Excavation, Inc. for construction of Water and Sanitary Sewer to serve Pizza Shack.

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve the Consent Agenda items (1-7) as presented. Rebecca

Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

8. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports,

A. Administrator’s Report - Mr. Jack Yates, City Administrator presented his report to

City Council. Mr. Yates advised that he wanted to report on two items that were not

included on his written report.

Mr., Yates advised that he was in the process of trying to find out when Kroger’s is
going to open. M. Yates said that he had emailed the corporate office of Kroger in
Cincinnati, Ohio, which he thought would be the ultimate place to find out that
information. Mr. Yates said that as soon as he finds something out, he will advise City

Council.

Mr. Yates said that something else, which he would like to discuss with City Council,
is the situation at the mobile home park at the end of Old Plantersville Road, Mr. Yates
said that the situation is there are old lines that run into the mobile home park, with
City meters at each of the mobile homes, Mr. Yates said the lines that lead up to the
mobile home park and between the meters and the homes are defacto public lines. Mr.
Yates said that he is proposing that he will work with the City Attorney, City Engineer
and the Mobile Home owner to set a Master Meter right off of the City line that runs
down Old Plantersville Road, and the lines inside the Mobile Home Park are the

owner’s responsibility, which is how it has always been.

Rebecca Huss said that the Mobile Home Park is platted as a single private property,
multi-family residence, so it would be just like how they have treated the apartment
buildings in the City. They would have a large meter at the curb, and the property
owner would own everything on the inside. Rebecca Huss said that it was her
understanding that the lines were not installed by the City, nor have they been
maintained by the City, nor are they up to City standards. Mr. Yates said that was
correct. Mr. Yates said that there was a leak a couple of months ago, and it took them

two weeks to fix the leak, which they did promptly repair when the City notified them.

01/24/17 Council Meating Minutes - Page 3




Mr, Yates said that there was a fair amount of water that was lost. Mr. Yates said that
he wanted to make sure that City Council was aware that he was going to be working
on that matter. Rebecca Huss said that it made sense to her, because they are requiring
everyone to pay for the water that they use, and they are trying to minimize the water
that the City uses. Mr. Yates said that the Mobile Home Park will have to work
something out with their tenants regarding the water bill. Mr. Yates said that they
could also trade out the meters that they had at the Mobile Home Park for older meters,

if the owner wanted to continue to charge the tenants based on their consumption.

John Champagne asked whether Kroger was waiting on anything from the City
regarding their progress. Mr. Yates said no, and stated that he did not think that there
had been any action at Kroger since mid-December. Mr. Yates said Kroger does not
have their coolers, which will take a fair amount of time, along with installation of the
shelves and getting the store stocked. John Champagne asked whether Jones & Carter

had been in touch with Kroger.

Mr. Fleming, City Engineer, said that he meets weekly with Kroger on Wednesday
morning, on site, and any delays that they are experiencing are internal and due solely
to the Kroger Corporation. Mr. Fleming advised that they are approaching completion

of the public utilities project to service the retail out parcel.

John Champagne said that, so everyone will know, the indication is that Kroger plans
to open in what month. Mr. Fleming said that their opening date might have slid into
summertime, Mr, Rick Hannah, City Building Inspector, advised that he goes by
Kroger weekly to do inspections and monitor the construction, The construction
superintendent has told Mr. Hannah that Kroger has a single crew that goes around the
country opening Kroger stores, and this particular store is scheduled for August 2017,
which means they will finish construction in July. Mr. Hannah said that he did not

know about the schedule for the fuel center.

John Champagne asked to confirm that Kroger’s default date regarding their agreement
with the City was January 1, 2018. Mr. Yates said that was correct. John Champagne

said that they will come in just under the deadline.

Mr. Yates said that they will also have to look at the City’s budget, and will have to cut
back on some of our expenses. Rebecca Huss said that the City is $200,000 - $150,000
under in projected revenues. Mr. Yates said that they were about $170,000 under, but

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




they also have $170,000 in property tax coming in the next couple of months. Mr.
Yates said that the City was also down quite a bit on expenses, Mr, Yates said that the
General Fund was at a positive $82,000. John Champagne said that maybe at the next
meeting they can discuss an amended budget. Mr, Yates said that he would bring

information back to City Council.

. Public Works Report — Mr. Mike Muckleroy, Public Works Manager, presented his

report to City Council. Mr, Muckleroy stated that they had planted 11 trees at Cedar
Brake Park. John Champagne asked what kind of trees were planted. Mr. Muckleroy

advised that there were 7 different types of trees, but none of them were cedar trees.

. Police Department Report — Chief James Napolitano, presented his report to City

Council, Chief Napolitano said that on December 6, 2016, an individual had robbed
the Compass Bank just outside the City limits. Officer Hernandez and Officer Riley
were instrumental in apprehending the suspects and bringing the call to an end 26
minutes after the robbery occurred. Chief Napolitano then introduced Officer Riley,
stating that the robbery occurred on his second day of work. Chief Napolitano advised

that Officer Riley is an experienced officer and they welcome him to the department.

Chief Napolitano also recognized Officer Tim Bauer for his work on a burglary of a
building on the north side of the City. Officer Bauer, with help from his colleges, was
able to develop three main suspects and the District Attorney’s office is working to
issue the warrants, Chief Napolitano said that Officer Bauer put together a great case
and now they are going to put three people in jail. Chief Napolitano said that all three
of the individuals live in the City of Conroe and have a long history of burglaries and

other crimes,

. Court Department Report -~ Ms. Rebecca Lehn, Court Administrator, presented her

report to City Council. Ms. Lehn said that usually December is a slow month for

warrants, but this was a good month for them.

Rebecca Huss asked if the Court had cleared the back log of cases, because she noticed
that citations had fallen, and asked if that made things easier for the Court. Ms, Lehn
said that citations have fallen, which caused revenue to drop. The warrant officer is
able to work the warrants. Ms. Lehn said that they are only running one court per

month right now, through the calendar year.

01/24/17 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 5




D. Utility/Development Report — In the absence of Mrs. Ashley Slaughter, Utility Billing

Clerk, Mr. Yates presented the report to City Council. Mr. Yates said that the monthly
charge for utilities is up due to the water rate, Mr. Yates said that there were six new
water accounts and there are 557 active accounts. Mr. Yates said there were 27 permits

issued for $12,000.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the monument sign that was part of the agreement
with Kroger, and asked if there was any recent discussions on the matter. Mr. Yates
said that just today Mr. Wade Nelson emailed the Mayor and they will have a meeting
on Thursday morning to discuss the monument. Mr. Yates said that Mr, Wade had
advised that Spirit Bank was close to getting serious about the monument. Mr, Yates
said that he has had a plan from Milestone and Kroger, for about nine or ten months
waiting for Spirit Bank to come through. Spirit Bank wants to do a monument as large
as, or larger than what Kroger was going to do. Mayor Jones said that Milestone wili

still contribute the $50,000 that they had set aside for the monument to Spirit Bank.

Rebecca Huss asked if this was the same Spirit Bank that is in Conroe with the replica
of the White House, and asked if the City would have some control over how
flamboyant the monument is. Mr. Yates said that City Council will review and approve
the ultimate plan for the monument. Mr. Yates said that in their discussions it was the
City of Montgomery monument, not the Spirit of Texas monument, Mayor Jones said
that the monument that they saw, in preliminary drawings, seemed very appropriate.
Mayor Jones said that the building will also be smaller than the Conroe site, in order

to fit on the property.

Mr. Foerster said that it was his understanding, while he can’t confirm this, is what the
Spirit of Texas wants a statue that shows one twin sister of San Jacinto there, which
will probably be very appropriate because James Wade, who was from Montgomery,
was manning the twin sister candidate in the battle of San Jacinto. Mayor Jones said

that originally they had something with Charles B. Stewart handing over the flag,

E. Water Report — Mr. Mike Williams, with Gulf Utilities presented his report to City
Council. Mr. Williams advised that this month there were a total of eight district alerts,
with all of them being resolved. Mr. Williams said that the totalizer reading was for

almost a complete month with the new totalizer, which shows an increase of 47 percent

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




versus the last total. Since installation of the totalizer, the average flow was 148,000

gallons.

Rebecca Huss said that she could not help but notice that on December 4, 2016, they
had a reading of 388,000 gallons, while they are only permitted for 400,000 gallons,
and asked if that meant that they were at a high risk for an excursion. Mr. Williams
said the permit is based on average monthly flow, not daily flow. Rebecca Huss said
that what this is saying is the infiltration is significantly worse than what they have
been working off of. Mr. Williams said that was correct. Mr. Williams said that he has
seen systems, when they have a large rain event, completely exceed the permitted level,
Mr. Williams said that Mr. Muckleroy is working on the matter. Rebecca Huss said
that was a lot of money down the toilet, Mr, Williams said that there were no excursions
for the month of December with over 5 inches of rain, Mr, Williams said that there

was an overall accountability of 98 percent.

John Champagne said the utilization of Well 3 seemed to be a lot better. Mr, Williams
said that they had to utilize Well 3 more within the year because they ran very short on
the permit for Well 4, and they did not want to incur any additional fees. John
Champagne said that in January they should see a difference in the usage. Mr. Williams
said that they would see a difference with Well 4 being utilized more, along with Well
2. Mr. Williams said that Well 2 is currently being underutilized because of the current
balance that they are receiving at the plant, which they are working with Entergy to
repair. Mayor Jones said that they have been working with Entergy for many months
on that issue and asked if they had made any progress. Mr. Williams said that he
believed Mr, Muckleroy had reported that there was a fix for that matter, and they are

working on running some new equipment out there to fix the balance.

Rebecca Huss said regarding the utilization of Wells 2 and 3, since the City is no longer
paying MUD 3 & 4, it should not matter how much they use that as long as they stay
within the City’s permitted value. Rebecca Huss asked if the City was going to stick
to a relatively even use of water between the wells for the entire year, or are they going
to see big fluctuations, because it does matter to people, given the difference in the
water from the Catahoula Well. Mr, Williams said that he has been working with the
City Engineer and City Staff, during the weekly conference calls, regarding that matter.

Mr. Williams said that, currently, they are going to try and utilize each well similarly.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Mayor Jones said that there should be a balance that would be most economic to

operate.

John Champagne asked if the communications and weekly meetings were good, things
being implemented, and information being shared. Mr. Williams said that they had an
upper hand with the communications that they have within the City, Mr, Williams said

that he feels that everything is being taken care of in a timely manner.

. Engineer’s Report — Mr. Glynn Fleming presented his report to City Council. Mr.

Fleming said that he was pleased to report that they have reached completion of the
Mobility Study. Mr. Fleming advised that he had reviewed a final draft of the Study
last week, which he had a few comments that they are working to address internally.
Mr. Fleming said that Mobility Study should be ready for the last City Council meeting

in February.

Mr. Fleming reported that the Kroger contractor was making nice progress. They are
underway and nearing completion of the waterline construction. Mr. Fleming said that
they will begin paving construction possible as early as late next week. Mr. Fleming
said that their original contract completion date was February 13, 2017, The contractor
was awarded a total of 8 days at this point, due largely to rain. Mr. Fleming said that

the current contract completion date is February 21, 2017.

Mr. Fleming advised that the bids for the Pizza Shack project were received on January
4, 2017 and the bid was awarded to Big State Excavation, as the low bidder. Mr.

Fleming advised that the contracts are currently out with the contractor for execution.

Mr. Fleming advised that they had received one preliminary plat review for a
commercial development, just west of Pizza Shack’s development that was accepted
by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Rebecca Huss asked if they had just
approved a Feasibility Study for Montgomery First at the last Council Meeting, and
asked if the completion of the study would be before they accept their plat. M,
Fleming said that should be completed and delivered to City Council within two weeks

from tonight.

Dave McCorquodale asked what the consensus was on the embankments of the bridge
in terms of what system the City Engineers felt would be the best for the job, Mr,
Fleming said that he was still moving forward with the gabion baskets, which he felt

would be the best and most permanent solution for the bridge. Mr. Fleming said that

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




they have been given two recommended local authorized contractors. Mr. Fleming
said that they have requested both of the contractors to come out and take a look at the
site, to help them establish the magnitude of the cost for their work, and then they will
be wrapping up some numbers on drainage and construction. Mr. Fleming said that he
understood that FEMA was in town last week, and they are having some personnel
turnover up the ladder. Mr. Fleming said that it sounded like the original project
coordinator that has been working with the team is remaining intact, which is good.
Mr. Fleming said that FEMA had advised Mr. Yates that they would like to see a

complete submission by February 2017, which is the timeline that they are working on.

Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Fleming thought that the construction project would result,
at least in the short term, in additional material being deposited in the canal. Mr,
Fleming said that he did not believe that it would. Mr., Fleming said that at some point
there will be a project to go in and clean that canal, which he envisioned as a joint
endeavor between upstream and downstream landowners and the City, Mr. Fleming
said that whatever work the City undertakes, there would be some environmental
permits that would mandate certain measures to ensure that they do not add more

material to the canal,

Mr. Fleming said that Hills of Town Creek, Section 2, the contractor has reached
completion and they have completed all the punch list items, and they are on the agenda
for their Certificate of Acceptance. The Lone Star Bend and Lone Star Parkway east
improvements are both moving forward and the County Engincer has plan sets from

the City Engineer for both and they are awaiting their comments,

Mr. Fleming said that as stated by the City Administrator, it looks like they are in the
homestretch with the Texas Water Development Board funding. The next Board
Meeting to be held in Austin is on February 23, 2017 and the City’s loan applications

are on that agenda for consideration for commitment of funds.

Mr. Fleming said that the West Side at the Park, a small residential development across
the street from City Hall, held a second and final inspection back on January 10, 2017.
They delivered the punch list items to the contractor, the developer and the developer’s
engineer, which are being addressed and should be brought back to City Council for
acceptance next month some time. Dave McCorquodale said that he stopped over there

last week to check the design change in the drainage, and said that it looked to him like

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 9




it was the right change when City Council let them go to the grass ditch as opposed to
the bulkhead. Dave McCorquodale said that the drainage looked like it was working

well,

Mr. Ed Shackleford, City Engineer, advised that City Council had a memo placed
before them, advising that Mr. Fleming has tendered his resignation to go to another
engineering firm in North Carolina. Mr. Shackleford said that Mr. Fleming will be
moving, primarily to be close to family and his Dad. Mr. Shackleford said that Mr.
Fleming’s resignation is effective January 31, 2017, Mr. Shackleford said that they

understand Mr. Fleming’s reason for his decision.

Mr. Shackleford said that fortunately they have a young engineer at their office by the
name of Chris Roznovsky, who has recently passed his engineering State exam and
will receive his P.E, stamp very shortly, Mr. Shackleford said that Mr, Roznovsky has
agreed to help him out, because as you know, this is more than a full time job for Mr.
Fleming, Mr. Shackleford then introduced Mr, Roznovsky to City Council and said
that he has been in meetings with Mr. Fleming, Mr. Yates, Mayor Jones and himself,
on a couple of occasions over the last couple days and last week, and is becoming
familiar with Montgomery. M. Shackleford said that Mr. Roznovsky is familiar with
the area because his family has property around the lake since he was a child. Mr.
Shackleford said that they are happy that Mr. Roznovsky has agreed to step in and help
out. Mr. Shackleford said that they are sorry to see Mr. Fleming go, but they were glad

to have him for the short time that he was with them.

Mayor Jones, said to Mr. Fleming, on behalf of the City, that they would like to thank
him for what he has done for the City and wish him well on his new endeavor. Mayor
Jones said that they had something that they would like to send with Mr. Fleming.
Mayor Jones stated to Mr. Fleming that with the time he spent at the birthplace of the
Texas Flag, he presented him with a Texas Star Pillow engraved with the date of the
birth of the Texas Flag. Mayor Jones asked Mr. Fleming to think of Montgomery when
he uses the pillow. Mr. Fleming thanked City Council and the City.

. Financial Report — Mrs. Cathy Branco, Financial Consultant, presented her report to

City Council. Mrs. Branco advised that this is the first time, in a very long time, that
all the accounts have a positive balance. Mrs. Branco said that interest rates have

increased a little bit, so they will need to be looking at some more investments. Mrs.

01/24/17 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 10




9.

10.

Branco advised that work had begun on the Audit and they should be coming into the
City to do the remainder of the work. Rebecca Huss asked whether the Auditor was
supposed to be here in December. Mrs. Branco said that was correct. Mrs. Branco

said that the Auditor said that January 16, would be their starting date.

Mrs. Branco said that they have coliected an additional amount of sales tax, which is
not shown on the report, in the amount of $145,000. Mrs. Branco said that there are
funds available in all of the accounts totaling $2,282,500, of that, investments are at

$880,000. Mrs. Branco said that she would be working on the budget,

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Departmental Reports as presented, T.J. Wilkerson

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding a Lease Agreement by and between the City of

Montgomery, Texas and Tom Cronin.

Mr. Yates advised that this lease was reviewed by the City Attorney and also recommended by
the Montgomery EDC. Mr. Yates said that it was a Lease of the Tom Cronin property, south
of the Cozy Grape, all the way to Colonel Laughter’s property. Mr, Yates said that the
Montgomery EDC intends to pay for the paving of the lot. Mr. Yates said that the lease will
be $1.00 per year for 20 years. Mr, Yates said that the lease does not require the paving. The

property will be used for parking and City parking for special events,

John Champagne moved to approve the lease as presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the

motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss said that she would just like to reiterate, that when they go to pave
the other section of the lot, she would prefer more than a one year lease, because she feels this
20 year lease works very well for the certainty of their investment, if they do keep it, it will
benefit the City for years to come, as opposed to the other one. Rebecca Huss said that she
understood that they had talked to Colonel Laughter’s son, but she would rather have it in

writing, Mr. Yates said that he understood.
The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A Resolution By The City Council Of The City Of Montgomery, Texas, Authorizing

Publication Of Notice Of Intention To Issue Certificates Of Obligation For Sanitary Sewer

System Projects: And Approving Other Matters Incidental Thereto.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




Mr. Jonathan Frels, Bond Attorney, presented items 10 and 11 together. Mr. Frels stated that
as indicated by the City Engineers earlier, the City has been in the process of borrowing funds
from the Texas Water Development Board for some time. Mr. Frels said that last fall City
Council adopted a Resolution authorizing the submission of an application for funding from
the Texas Water Development Board, both under the Clean Drinking Water Revolving Fund
Program and the Drinking Water Revolving Fund Program. Mr. Frels said that they have
received every indication from the Water Development Board that they intend to approve those
applications at their February 23, 2017 meeting. Mr. Frels said that would mean, soon after
that approval, they would borrow funds from them with the Issuance of Certificates of

Obligation.

Mr. Frels said that in talking with Mr. Jim Gilley, the City’s Financial Advisor, and Mr, Yates,
they came to the conclusion that the City wanted to move fairly quickly on this project. Mr.
Frels said that what they have before City Council this evening is the Notice of Intent to [ssue
Certificates of Obligation. Mr. Frels said that by adopting this now, it will allow the City to
move forward with the process to Issue the Certificates of Obligation, so that they could be

ready for the sale at the second meeting in March, 2017.

Mr. Frels said that because they are doing this process in advance, they are adopting the
maximum amount authorized under the Resolution that the City submitted to the Texas Water
Development Board for funding. Mr. Frels said that the City does not have to issue that
amount. Mr. Frels said that the preliminary numbers that they have seen are slightly lower

than the amount of what they see listed in the Notification.

Mr. Frels advised that one of the Resolutions is for the Sanitary Sewer Project under the Clean
Water Revolving Fund, and the Water System Projects are under the Drink Water Revolving

Fund, which is why they have two separate Resolutions,

Rebecca Huss, asked from a legal perspective, whether everyone on City Council needed to be
present at the second meeting in March, because that is Spring Break. Mr. Frels said that at
the March 28, 2017 meeting, they will need 2/3 majority of City Council present. Mr. Frels

said that the vote does not have to be unanimous, they just need 4 of the 5 members present.

Mayor Jones asked Mr, Gilley what the rates are currently. Mr. Gilley said that it appears the

interest rate will be in the low to mid 1% range.

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt a Resolution By The City Council Of The City Of Montgomery,
Texas, Authorizing Publication Of Notice Of Intention To Issue Certificates Of Obligation For

01/24/17 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 12




1.

12.

Sanitary Sewer System Projects; And Approving Other Matters Incidental Thereto, Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A Resolution By The City Council Of The City Of Montgomery, Texas, Authorizing

Publication Of Notice Of Intention To Issue Certificates Of Obligation For Water System

Projects: And Approving Other Matters Incidental Thereto,

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt a Resolution By The City Council Of The City Of Montgomery,
Texas, Authorizing Publication Of Notice Of Intention To Issue Certificates Of Obligation For
Water System Projects; And Approving Other Matters Incidental Thereto.  Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously, (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
REGARDING STAR OF TEXAS SENIORS LTD AT LONE STAR _PARKWAY FOR
SUPPORT AND LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISION FUNDING.

Mr. Yates said this Resolution is to support the Star of Texas Seniors Ltd., which is a business
that builds senior housing. Mr. Yates said that this is a request for a Resolution in support of
their application to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to receive

housing tax credits and to receive a $2,000 reduction toward water and sewer tap fees.

Mr, Wade Bienski, developer, presented drawings to City Council. This development is a
senior citizen development, ages 55 and older, with approximately 48, 1-2 bedroom units, with
amenities and management staff on property. Mr. Bienski advised that the units would be

single story four-plexes.

Rebecca Huss asked how the subsidy would be received, such as tax rebates, etc. Mr, Bienski
said that the State issues tax credits, and the credits are sold to investors, which is how they get

the equity back. Mr. Bienski said that they would also get a bank loan,

Rebecca Huss asked how this compared to what Blazer is doing, because she thought their
second section was specifically this type of development, and it states in here that they can
only have a certain number of them within a certain area. Mr. Yates said that he did not know
about the certain number in a certain area, but he contacted Blazer before the meeting, and they
said that they were not sure they were going to apply. Mr. Yates said that he thought it was

because the competition is so stiff, that they did not think that they could get more than two or

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




three of these developments for the entire region. Mr. Bienski said that it is a point system,
and as of now, they are number one on the list. Mr. Yates said that action was primarily to

help get their points up for the application.

Mr. Yates said that his thought was the Montgomery EDC could bear the cost of the $2,000
credit for the water and sewer tap fees, so it would not affect the water and sewer utility fund,
Rebecea Huss said that it would be the same as the matter that they discussed at the last Council
Meeting, where the funds do not go out, it just stays in house as a credit for that account. Mr.

Yates said that was correct.

Dave McCorquodale asked the developer to give some information on their background. Mr.
Bienski said they have been with this program since it started in 1988. Mr. Bienski said that
they have 1,000 plus units in production. Mr. Bienski said another senior facility they have,
similar to this, is in Huntsville on Montgomery Road with over 120 units, all single story four-
plexes. Dave McCorquodale asked if they did the managing of the property. Mr. Bienski said

they do their own management and they are all here local, not out of State,

Rebecca Huss said that one of the attractive things about Blazer, was they had a contract with
their financing partners where they commit to 15 years, ownership and management of the
property versus an out of state investor. Rebecca Huss said that if they are going to commit
for 15 years, obviously from a City perspective, it is probably a better quality development,
and asked if there was any way that they could give the City assurances that they will continue
to own this property for some period of time. Mr. Bienski said that it would be 15 years, plus
another 15 years on top of that to comply with affordable housing and with the existing

ownership, which he confirmed was included in the contract with the State.

Mi. Foerster stated, for the record, that he would expect that waiving any connection fees or
anything of that sort, would be a public benefit accrued by this development by coming in to
serve those who are 55 and older, that otherwise might not be available to the residents of

Montgomery.

Rebecca Huss said that it is clear that they have discussed this before, affordable housing is
something that Montgomery does lack. Rebecca Huss said that she did not think that she had
an issue with the point of this, especially if it is managed on a commercial basis. Rebecca Huss
said that it made sense to her, from a personal perspective, to do things that work in the real

world.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




13.

Mayor Jones said that he has seen some similar projects in Conroe that were nicely done and

managed. Mr. Bienski said that they have restrictions on the property, which they enforce.

T.J. Wilkerson asked if Mr. Fleming had seen the project and asked whether it would affect the
Baja Road drainage. Mr. Fleming said that it would not affect Baja Road, and said that this
development would front onto Lone Star Parkway. Mr. Fleming said that the initial plans that

the developer has shown calls for onsite detention, with a pretty sizable onsite detention pond.
Mayor Jones said that it was immediately adjacent to the Lone Star Community Center.

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Montgomery, Texas regarding Star of Texas Senjors LTD at Lone Star Parkway for support
and local political subdivision funding. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:

A RESOLUTION GRANTING A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF A TOTAL OF
14.5003 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS; SETTING A DATE, TIME, AND PLACE
FOR TWO PUBLIC HEARINGS ON THE PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF SAID
PROPERTIES BY THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY., TEXAS; AND AUTHORIZING AND
DIRECTING THE CITY SECRETARY TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH PUBLIC
HEARINGS AND MAKE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC THE CITY ANNEXATION
SERVICE PLAN.

Mr. Yates advised that the area is located north of the area between Pizza Shack and the

northeast corner of Lone Star Parkway and SH 105.

John Champagne moved to approve calling the Public Hearings for consideration of the
Petition for Annexation from Kenneth Ray Vaught, Jr. and Rocky Del Papa for property inside

the extra-territorial jurisdiction area of the City of Montgomery.

Mayor Jones asked if this motion would set the dates for the Public Hearings. Mr. Foerster
said that, for the record, he would recommend two Public Hearings, one on February 14, 2017
at 6:00 p.m., and the second one on February 28, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. Mr. Foerster said that those

dates and times would concur with the next two City Council Meeting dates and times.

John Champagne amended his motion to cali the Public Hearings to be held on February 14,

2017 at 6 p.m. and February 28, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




Discussion: Rebecca Huss said that looking at the backup information for this item it has the
retail along SHI105, but that is not what they are talking about. Rebecca Huss said they are
talking about the second set of maps, and the main parcel remaining is 14.9 acres, and asked if
that was the area. Mr. Yates said that was the arca. Rebecca Huss said it looked like this
property did not have any frontage of its own. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Mr. Yates said
that the property is the area north of the strip of land that was annexed earlier between Lone
Star Parkway and Pizza Shack. Rebecca Huss said that Dave McCorquedale said that it might
be the Right of Way that touches the parcel rather than the actual road.

Mayor Jones said that Mr. Fleming has an explanation for the property. Mr. Fleming said that
when he mentioned earlier in his report, that they had received the preliminary plat that went
before the Planning and Zoning Commission last night. Mr. Fleming said that the total acreage
for the property is 20 acres or just a little over. Mr. Fleming said that a portion of the property
is already in the City limits, which are the parcels along the SH 105 frontage that is zoned as
commercial. Mr. Fleming said that the casiest way to describe the location of the property is
that is sits between the Pizza Shack development and the commercial shell that is under
construction by Lone Star Parkway. Mr, Fleming said that just north of that area, there is
another 14 acrés that abuts the tributary of Stewart Creek, which is not in the City limits, but
is in the City’s extra-territorial jurisdiction. Mr. Fleming said the preliminary plat that was
submitted encompasses the entire arca, and what they are doing tonight is to begin the

annexation process so the property will all be inside the City limits.

Rebecca Huss asked whether the zoning for the property had been requested. Mr. Fleming said
that he did not know if it had been established or requested as of this date, but the initial
indications are that it will be mixed use commercial. Mayor Jones asked whether access to the
property would be off of Lone Star Parkway. Mr. Fleming said that they had not gotten that
far yet, but said that in talking with the developer, there will probably be an application for a
curb cut out onto SH105, and there has also been talk about a driveway onto Lone Star
Parkway. Mr. Fleming said that he has already advised the developer of the potential
complications, or crowded nature of that, given that they already have two existing driveways
coming out from Kroger and one additional driveway for the commercial shell. Mayor Jones
said that there is also a bridge. Mr. Fleming said that was correct. Mr. Fleming said that they

will be taking all that information into consideration and they look at their land plan,

The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




14. Consideration and possible action regarding Greenbelt Separation between Heritage

Apartments and Shopping Center.

Mr. Yates advised that this project has been an intention of the Montgomery EDC for the past
two years, without any promises being made. Mr. Yates said that the thought was to provide
a visual barrier to the apartment residents to the backside of the shopping center and to
generally improve the appearance of Flagship Boulevard. Mr. Yates advised that the
Montgomery EDC would provide the funding for the project, with the expectation that the
Heritage Apartments would possibly provide part of the funding in the shopping center. Mr.
Yates said that annual maintenance cost would be borne by the City, in part, because the

Montgomery EDC funds cannot be used for maintenance.

Mr. Yates provided plans for four areas, with the intent to plant area one and two now, which
would involve the cost of $7,000. Mr. Yates stated that Montgomery EDC has it in their
budget, and since it is under the $10,000 it does not require City Council action, but it will
require maintenance through the years, so he wanted to see if City Council was okay with the
project. Mr, Yates said that he estimated the cost of the maintenance to be $1,900 for the first
year, which allows water and some City staff maintenance costs. Mr, Yates said that it would
be $2,400 maintenance costs for the second year, $3,300 for the third year, as they add the

other areas,

Rebecca Huss asked if this would be planted on City owned right-of-way because, it is her
understanding that there is not a lot of current grass or dirt back there, Mr. Yates said that he
believed there was a 70 foot City right-of-way and asked Mr. Fleming to confirm that. Mr.
Fleming said that he believed that was correct. Mr. Fleming said that there is 80 feet around
the corner on the east side of Brookshire Bros. Mr. Yates said that the City’s waterline is

located to the north edge of the right-of-way.

Dave McCorquodale said that he looks forward to the day when they combine stormwater
projects in with this type of work and alleviate a little bit of storm sewer capacity and water
quality issues, but he is in favor of more planting that fess. Mr. Yates said that he would be
asking the shopping center and the apartments for contributions. Mr. Yates said he knew the
apartments would contribute some. Mayor Jones said that the apartments have planted some

on the south side of the road. Mayor Jones said that it will be nice to see a tree lined drive.

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve the planting plan and to allow for City maintenance,

as presented. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17




15. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,
TO AMEND CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10, DATED AUGUST 25, 2015, AND CITY
ORDINANCE NO. 2011, DATED AUGUST 25, 2015, BY AMENDING SPECIFIC
SECTIONS OF THE CITY INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, INTERNATIONAL
RESIDENTIAL CODE AND NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH;
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE: PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS
CLAUSE: AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE ON FEBRUARY 1, 2017 AFTER
PUBLICATION.

Mr. Yates advised that this ordinance is a result of the Building Code Review Committee,
which City Council appointed several months ago. The Committee consisted of Rick Hanna,
Building Inspector, Mike Ogorchock, Builder, Brian Solomon, Electrical Contractor, Bilf
Simpson, Roofing Contractor and Glynn Fleming, City Engineer.

Mr. Hanna advised that the City adopted the International Code and the National Electric Code
as written, and these are some amendments that make the requirements a little more stringent.
Mr. Hanna said that the contractors that have been building in the City have already been
meeting these standards, other than upgrading the electrical wiring. Mr. Hanna said that the
amendment calls for a better quality of piping. Mr. Hanna said that in the electrical portion
that are asking to require that all wiring being copper, and not allow aluminum wiring, and
stated that 12 gauge wire would be the smallest gauge of wiring, because right now the Code
allows a 14 gauge wire. Mr. Hanna said that fire people say that 12 gauge is safer, because it
does not restrict the electrical flow. Mr, Hanna said that that cost is an additional 25-50 cents,
Mr. Hanna said that the other cities in the area, Huntsville, Conroe and Tomball all use these
amendments, so they are not doing anything out of line. Mr. Hanna said that those cities had

several other amendments, but the Committee did not feel that they wanted to be that strict.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the drain lines that are schedule 40, and asked if that would
be for yard drains, area drains, etc, Mr. Hanna said that it would not, the Building Code covers
the building itself and three feet out away from the structure, not irrigation lines. Dave
McCorquodale asked about gutter downspouts, Mr. Hanna said that again, that would be

outside the building, they were only looking at under the building and in the structure.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 18




16.

Mayor Jones asked if any electricians used aluminum wiring. Mr, Hanna said that he had not
had anyone in Montgomery use aluminum, but since it was in the Code someone could come
along and use it. Mr. Hanna said that he was just trying to prevent someone from moving in
a structure that used aluminum wiring or installing aluminum wiring. Mr, Hanna said that the
service fees that utility contractors bring in have aluminum wiring in them, but he was talking

about once it hits the meter and enters the home, they wanted it to be copper.

Rebecca Huss said that she appreciated the Committee going through this information, because
City Council does not have the expertise of this information, but it sounds like it is really
important for the safety and quality of the homes in the City. Mr, Hanna said that the changes

are minor, but will produce a safer home.

After discussion, John Champagne moved to approve the following ordinance: AN
ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, TO
AMEND CITY ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10, DATED AUGUST 25, 2015, AND CITY
ORDINANCE NO. 2011, DATED AUGUST 25, 2015, BY AMENDING SPECIFIC
SECTIONS OF THE CITY INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, INTERNATIONAL
RESIDENTIAL CODE AND NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH;
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE ON FEBRUARY 1, 2017 AFTER
PUBLICATION, Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding a variance request for Waterside Estates for lot

width, lot denth, side building line and minimum residential lot area.

Mr. Fleming said that there was a conceptual land plan, along with some variance requests,
submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 174 lot development to be placed on
the north side of Lone Star Parkway, just west of the dental office. Mr, Fleming said that after
some deliberation, the Commission chose to table action on the variance requests and asked

the developers engineer to come back with some revisions to their site plan,

Mr. Yates said that he did not think that any action needed to be taken since the Commission
tabled the action on the item. Mayor Jones said that City Council needs to hear what the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended. Mr. Fleming said that the Commission was
leery of the proposed density of the project, which is 174 lots on a 60-acre tract. Mr. Fleming

said that he noted that the compensating greenspace did not appear to be a one to one match as

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 19




provided by the City’s Code of Ordinances. Mr. Fleming said that there were questions about
how the site drainage would play out, and the conceptual land plan only showed one point of
egress that was out onto Lone Star Parkway. Mr, Fleming said that the Commission did not
fike the density of the lots or that there was only one way in and out, because it abuts the canal.
The Commission asked the developers engineer to make some revisions to the site plan and to

come back next month.

Mr. Yates also said that he is working with the Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman
on a plan for areas of high and low density development. Mayor Jones said that it would be a

planning too! that could reduce the number of variance requests.

Rebecca Huss said that when they looked at this matter before there were issues about the
waterline extension under the bridge, and now there are issues with the bridge, all of which are
outstanding and they weren’t interested in going forward until they cleared the backlog of
outstanding issues. Rebecca Huss said that the issues are still exactly the same as they were
six months ago, or however long it has been since they discussed this before. Mayor Jones
asked if Mr, Bowen was the developer. Mr. Fleming said that was correct, he is the owner of

this particular parcel of land.

Rebecca Huss moved to follow the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission
and table this matter until another time. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)

17. Consideration and possible action regarding Certificate of Acceptance for water, sanitary

sewer, drainage, and paving improvements to serve Hills of Town Creek, Section Two,

Mr, Fleming advised that this is a 50-lot, single family development located on SH 105 west
and Lone Star Parkway that has completed all their water, sanitary sewer and paving, and have
posted all their necessary bonds and final plat, which has been approved and is getting City
signatures at this time. Mr. Fleming said that he is recommending approval of the Certificate

of Acceptance which starts the time period for the one year warranty.

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the Certificate of Acceptance for water, sanitary sewer,
drainage and paving improvements to serve the Hills of Town Creek, Section Two. Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

18. Presentation regarding Camillo 33-acre tract located next to the eastern City limits.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20




Mr. Bob Devillier, Land Development and Acquisition Manager for Camillo Properties said
that he wanted to introduce their company to the City. Mr. Devillier advised they were
currently in the feasibility study stage with the 33-acre tract directly behind Pizza Shack. They
are looking at putting in 50 ft. by 120 ft, lots. They are located outside the City in the ETJ and
they would be looking at annexation into the City. Mr, Devillier said that he felt a 75 foot lot
would not be marketable. They are building homes in Walden and Cape Conroe, 250K homes,

3-4 bedroom homes measuring 2400 square feet, not small but an average size home.

Mr. Devillier said that he wanted to see if the City had any problem with the lot size that they

were interested in and they also wanted to see what the costs outside their site would be.

Rebecca Huss said that Jones and Carter had prepared a Feasibility Study for that property and
asked if Mr, Devillier had looked at that report. Mr. Devillier said that was done a couple years
ago and some of the items have changed since it was prepared. Mr. Fleming said that had been
prepared either very late 2014 or early 2015. Mr. Fleming said that at that time the utility
picture was not very clear and they were just beginning work on the system wide analysis of
water and wastewater and whether there was utility available, Mr. Fleming said that both of
those reports are complete and they rely heavily on them as a planning tool. Mr. Fleming said
that the utility extensions on the north side of SH 105 have now come to fruition and they are

ready for the contracts to come back and construction to begin,

Mayor Jones said that as he recalled the City upsized the line to Pizza Shack with the
expectation that this development would come. Mr. Fleming said that the line would also

serve other commercial frontage on the south side of SH 105,

Rebecca Huss said that she felt, personally, that higher density housing on the east side, right
by a large apartment building definitely makes sense. Rebecca Huss said that she felt that the
Planning and Zoning Commission’s comment from last night’s discussion regarding only
having one location to enter and exit for such a large subdivision might be more difficult to
deal with or accept. Rebecca Huss said that she was wondering about the compensating
greenspace, and asked how much of that is actually located in the Flood Plain. Mr. Devillier
said that what is shown in green will definitely be in the Flood Plain. Rebecca Huss said that
it would not really be compensating greenspace but junk that you can’t build on. Rebecca Huss
said, to her, compensating greenspace would be visual and usable space, so this would allow
what is built on the other side of the canal to be visible because you would not have a lot of

visual barrier. Mr, Devillier said that the land plan being presented is very conceptual, and was

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




not meant to be set in stone, but simply a guideline to use. Mr. Devillier said that he was
familiar with what they would need for the greenspace, so that would be something that they
would have to consider. Mr. Fleming said that there was no prohibition in the City Code to
prohibit using Flood Plain land from being used as greenspace, and on the surface he did not
know that he would offer any objection, and he felt that the developer would have the incentive

to make the area visually pleasing, given the number of lots that would back up to the canal.

Dave McCorquodale asked about the greenspace and said that he had read several articles about
building trails on Flood Plain land. Dave McCorquodale said that if there was a way to manage
a biking, walking or golf cart path on that greenspace to connect to Kroger that would allow
people to use the path and not have to use their cars that would be an asset to the City,
Regarding lot sizes, he did not see a 75 foot lot going in there seeing the connecting area.
Mayor Jones said that this area would definitely be a higher concentration area. Mr. Devillier
said that regarding the single entrance, he felt that they could lose a lot and add another entry.
John Champagne asked about the size of the homes. Mr. Devillier said the houses range from
2,400 to 3,000 square feet. Rebecca Huss said that the $250,000 price range seemed a little
high for that focation.

Mr. Devillier said that they would start out with 8-10 homes for a couple months, and then add
four houses per month, Mr. Devillier said that they would also need a lift station on site. Mr.
Fleming said that they would have to go back and revisit the Feasibility Study to compare with
the current utilities. Mayor Jones asked what their original density was when they did their

first request. Mr. Fleming said that it was very similar.

Mayor Jones said that the purpose of this item was for Mr, Devillier to make a presentation to
let the City know what he is thinking, and for Mr. Devillier to hear the concerns that the City
might have. Mayor Jones said that the City has invested monetarily in something going in at
that location, Rebecca Huss said that residential properties do not really give a lot of return for

the investment outiay in utilities.

Dave McCorquodale said that to him in the City, the guiding principal that they try and base
their decisions on is the quality of life of the people that are about to become residents of the
City. Dave McCorquodale said, to him, things that demonstrate a care for what the folks are
going to buy these homes, how their life is improved by what the developer does, speaks a lot
to him in terms of the decision and serves as a good guidepost for why you did what you did.

Dave McCorquodale said that in terms of the land plan, he is a strong believer that space makes

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22




19.

quality of life happening. He does not think that that anyone is against someone making a

living, but good quality of life, no matter whether in the Historic District or the outlying areas.

Consideration and possible action regarding requested driveway spacing variance from Living

Savior Lutheran Church.

Mr. Fleming advised that this was a variance request, as submitted by the engineer for the
Living Savior Lutheran Church, regarding a waiver of the driveway spacing requirements in
the City Code. Mr. Fleming said that this particular tract does not provide adequate space to
allow the proper distance required. Mr. Fleming said that, after review, he does not have any

objection from an engineering design standpoint.

Mr. Fleming said that he thought it was important to note that the lot in question, while it is
currently unpaved, is already used as a service lot for church events and some other events that
take place downtown. Mr. Fleming said that the plén calls for the [ot to be paved, and to cuta
second driveway out on to Louisa Street, Mr. Fleming said that as he said, he does not have
any inherit objections to this plan, but once they get to the engineering design phase and plan
review, there would be a real onus on the developer and the developer’s engineer, to take a
look at the feasibility of the driveways going out onto what is designed as minor residential
street with only 14-16 foot paving width on the road. Mr. Fleming stated that there were also
very shallow roadside ditches on that street. Mr. Fleming said that when they pave an area of
that size, it has the intention of being a game changer in terms of drainage and runoff into the
ditches. Mr. Fleming said that there definitely were some things that needed to be looked at
during the plan review phase. Mr. Fleming said that as far as the variance request itself, he

offered no objection to the request.

Mayor Jones said that for the most part activity would occur twice on Sunday morning there
might be a little traffic. Mayor Jones said that the location of the drive on Caroline Street

would remain the same. Mr. Fleming said that was correct.

Mr. Fleming said that this item did go before the Planning and Zoning Commission yesterday
evening, and they had a few questions about the request, but they did act favorably on the item.
Mr. Fleming advised that Jonathan White, with L Squared was present and available to answer

and questions.

M. Yates said that he met with the Living Savior Lutheran Church representatives and M.
Bob Peel at 1:30 p.m. today. Mr. Yates said that while all this information was new to Mr.

Peel, they were able to reach a settlement with the addition of a gravel parkway that will lead

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 23




off of the circular drive on Church Street, Mr, Yates said that the church is willing to add a
gravel driveway to give Mr. Peel access to his gravesite area that he is concerned about. Mr.
Yates said that he believed that there was going to be an easement that will assure Mr. Peel,
who was not present tonight. Mr. Yates said that Mr. Peel stated that “he asked for something

in writing, and if he received that then he would not stick around for the Council Meeting.”

Rebecca Huss said that the background on this item is that Mr. Peel’s enthusiasm for the

original plan was significantly overstated at the last meeting.

Mr, Krenz, with Living Savior Lutheran Church, said that Mr. Peel really did not have a
problem with the set back variance, but had a problem with access to his cemetery. Mr, Krenz
said that Mr. Peel has been parking on their property, and with them removing the asphalt, it
removes his ability to park there, which was really the issue, which has been resolved with Mr.
Peel, by putting in the limestone. Rebecca Huss asked if Mr. Krenz had given Mr. Peel
something in writing. Mr, Krenz said that he did and said that he could show Rebecca Huss

the signed document. Rebecca Huss said that Mr., Peel is fine with it, or he would be present.

Mr. Krenz said that he had his architect prepare a conceptual draft of some landscaping for the
church property and shared the drawings with City Council. Mr. Krenz said that the City
minimum for parking spaces is 9 feet wide, but they are making them 10 feet wide for ease of
parking. Mr. Krenz said it would not look like a grocery store parking lot. Rebecca Huss said
that she appreciated Mr. Krenz putting plants on the plans for the parking lot, because the heat
radiating from the parking lot, visually that will help soften the impact of moving from a field
to a paved surface. Mr, Krenz said that the property is not very attractive right now. Rebecca
Huss said that depends on your perspective because grass is better than asphalt to some people.
Mr. Krenz said that they are good citizens and they will do whatever makes good sense to make
this beautiful. Rebecca Huss said that she hoped that it would not cost very much and would
be low maintenance. Rebecca Huss said that she had looked at the Rampy crepe myrties on

the east of town, and said that was actually a really neat and nice barrier.

Mayor Jones asked what was going to be located in the middie of the islands. Mr, Krenz said
that he believed they were shrubs with lght posts for the parking lot. Mayor Jones asked about
the trees around the perimeter, and whether most of them would be existing trees. Mr. Krenz
said that the trees that are currently there are scrub trees and not in good shape. Mr. Krenz said

that they will be putting in new trees.

01/24/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 24




Dave McCorquodale stated that in [ooking at the medians between the parking isles, it looked
like the drainage was going into the medians with a bio-swale. Mr. White said that he would
mention it to the architect, because they fike doing green projects. Dave McCorquodale said
that would be a great thing to do. Dave McCorquodale said that one other thought that he had
regarding the egress, he knew that they had one on Caroline Street that they are going to use
now, but said that as the church body grows, if they could engender a sense in the congregation
to turn right, and leave the neighborhood as quietly and quickly as possible. Dave
McCorquodale said that when the Cowboy Church decided it was easier to open a back drive
exit out of the church that it was to deal with the backups on SH 1035, the result was about 1,000
cars on a Sunday morning coming in front of about two dozen homes. Dave McCorquodale
said that it was a thought he had and was not something that he would hold their feet to the
fire. Mr, Krenz said that it would be a change, because the front lot will be dedicated to
handicapped parking and the new entrance will be on the west side, not the east side, which
will take a while for people to get the flow of the traffic. Mr. Krenz said that he appreciated
the comments and they would provide some counsel to everyone how best they think they can
manage the traffic. Mr, Krenz said in all reality, is initially they will 100-120 people at each

service, two times on Sunday, so they won’t have a full parking lot.

Rebecca Huss said that, back to the bio-swale, might go with what they talked about at the last
meeting, where it might be more expensive, but better for the City to work with Montgomery
EDC on doing something that is innovative and better for the community in a number of
different ways. Mayor Jones said that would be something to consider. Mayor Jones asked
what direction the water naturally drained on the property. Mr. White said that it drains south
from the church, and then back towards SH 105. Mr. Krenz said that the ditch has standing
water in it. Mr. White said the ditch on Church Street is larger than the other ditches around

town.

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the requested driveway spacing variance from Living Savior
Lutheran Church. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-

0)

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The Citv Councii reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or

f or anv items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

qualifications in Sections 551.071{consultation with attorney), 551.072 {deliberation regarding rcal

01/24/17 Council Meeating Minutes - Page 25







ITEM# 3
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Exhibits: letter from Montgomery County
Prepared By: Jack Yates Emergency Communication District,
City Administrator Resolution

Date Prepared: February 4, 2017

Accepting the Montgomery County Emergency Communication District as the addressing
authority for the city.

Since 1992 the Montgomery County Emergency Communication District (MCECD) has been

assigning all addresses in the in the county, at some point in the past the city of Montgomery -
also assigned the addressing task to the MCECD. They have asked for a resolution that
approves placing the authority for addressing within the city’s jurisdiction with the MCECD,

The city would definitely want to continue with this relationship because of all the
coordination that is involved in establishing and the record keeping involved.

Reccomendation
Approve the resolution as presented.

Approved By

Department Manager Date:
Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 4, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 3





RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION DISTRICT
AS ADDRESSING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Emergency Communication District (MCECD)
was appointed by the Montgomery County Commissioners’ Court to perform the
addressing function for Montgomery County on March 2, 1992; and

WHEREAS, the MCECD adheres to established addressing and mapping protocol,
endorsed by the National Emergency Number Association (NENA) and by the Urban and
Regional Information systems Association (URISA); and

WHEREAS, the MCECD has firmly established relationships with its partner
agencies: Montgomery County Sheriff's Office, Conroe Police Department, Montgomery
County Hospital District and The Woodlands Fire Department, as well as the Montgomery
County Central Appraisal District and Montgomery County’s GIS Department ; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of approves
placing the authority for addressing within the city’s jurisdiction with the Montgomery
County Emergency Communication District (MCECD); and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City of
{Governing Body of the Participating Jurisdiction) that the Montgomery County Emergency
Communication District is the addressing authority for the city’s jurisdiction.

Passed and approved this day of , 2017.
ATTEST:
Name: Title:

Title:




ITEM# 4
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits; Resolution of selection
Date Prepared: February §, 2017

Consideration of Resolution selecting engineer and grant administration services to be
provided for Disaster Relief Fund grant that will be applied for to match the FEMA funds for
the Buffalo Springs Rd., Bridge project.

This resolution is required as part of the submission information to the CDBG Disaster Relief
Fund grant application. I the recommendation is the result of the Council appointed committee
consisting of Rebecca Huss, TJ Wilkerson, Susan Hensley and Jack Yates soliciting RFQ’s
and interviewing prospective engineers and grant administrator applicants.

Engineering

The Committee interviewed two engineering firms of the four that were submitted, Jones and
Carter and Weisser (of Houston). Weisser is a small firm that is done several projects in the
area.

Jones and Carter has experience in the city and has already been hired to do the FEMA design
and construction work on the bridge

Because of Jones and Carter to experience with the city in general and specifically because of
their already being hired for the FEMA share of the bridge project, the Committee
recommends selecting Jones and Carter is the engineer for the disaster relief fund grant, if
received,

Grant Administration

Grant Works has experience with CDBG applications including the Disaster Relief Fund.
$350,000 is the amount of the grant available. There is no fee due if the grant is not awarded.
Because of grant works experience with disaster relief fund CDBG applications, the
committee recommends selecting grant works as the grant administrator for the disaster relief
fund grant, if received.

[f approved by the Council, a contract will be signed with the engineer and the grant
administrator firms.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 4


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Approve the Resolution as presented.

Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 8, 2017




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, SELECTING
ADMINISTRATIVE AND ENGINEERING SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR A 2017-2018
TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RELIEF PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the 2017-2018 TxCDBG Disaster Relief Program (DR) Fund contract requires implementation
by professionals experienced in the implementation of federally-funded community development projects;

WHEREAS, in order to identify qualified and responsive providers for these services a Request for
Proposals (RFP) process for administration services and a Request for Qualifications {RFQ) for engineering
services has been completed in accordance with Texas CDBG requirements;

WHEREAS, the proposals received by the due date have been reviewed to determine the most qualified
and responsive providers for each professional service;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

Section 1a.  That Grantworks be selected to provide Texas CDBG project-related administration
services for the 2017-2018 Disaster Relief Fund project for both application and
implementation services.

Section 1b That Jones & Carter Engineering be selected to provide Texas CDBG project-related
professional engineering services for the 2017-2018 Disaster Relief Fund project for

both application and implementation services.
Section 2, That any and all contracts or commitments made with the above-named services

providers are dependent on the successful negotiation of a contract with the service
provider;

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE 14T DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2017.

THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary




ITEM# 5
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Exhibits: Resolution authorizing
Prepared By: Jack Yates submission of application
City Administrator

Date Prepared: February 8, 2017

Consideration of resolution authorizing submission of the CDBG application to the disaster
relief fund for local matching funds to FEMA portion of Buffalo Springs Bridge work

This resolution is required as part of the submission information to the CDBG Disaster Relief
Fund grant application, It basically says that the city is eligible to apply because of the federal
disaster declaration received following the May 2016 flood, designates the city administrator
to act in behalf of the city regarding the grant documentation.

I think that Martha Drake of Grant Works will be present at the meeting.

Reccomendation
Approve the Resolution as presented.

Approved By

Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 8, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 5


RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A
TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM APPLICATION TO
THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOR BRIDGE REPAIRS AND AUTHORIZING
THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACT AS THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE IN ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM,

WHEREAS, City of Montgomery desires to develop a viable community, including decent
housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities,
principally for persons of low/moderate income; and

WHEREAS, certain conditions exist within the community as a result of the storm incident
designated as DR-4272-TX which occurred between May 22, 2016 and June 24, 2016, which
represent a potential risk to the public health and safety; and

WHEREAS, the Governor of Texas has declared Montgomery County to be a disaster area
making it eligible for assistance from the Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program (TxCDBG) Disaster Relief Fund (DR); and

WHEREAS, the President of the United States has declared Montgomery County to be a
disaster area making it eligible for assistance from the Federal Emergency Management
Administration (FEMA); and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of City of Montgomery to select
professional service providers and to apply for funding under the 2017 Texas Community
Development Block Grant Program - Disaster Relief Fund for assistance to serve as a portion
of the City’s required 25% match to FEMA funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:
Section 1. That a Texas Community Development Block Grant Program application for

the Disaster Relief Fund is hereby authorized to be filed on behalf of the City
of Montgomery with the Texas Department of Agriculture;

Section 2, That the City's application be placed in competition for funding under the
Disaster Relief Fund;

Section 3. That the application be for up to $350,000.00 of grant funds to serve as match
to FEMA funds to provide funds for bridge infrastructure repairs as detailed
on the FEMA project worksheets, engineering services, and administration
activities in the City of Montgomery benefiting all residents of the City of
Montgomery;




Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

That the City Council directs and designates the City Administrator as the
City's Chief Executive Officer and Authorized Representative to act in all
matters in connection with this application and the City's participation in the
Texas Community Development Block Grant Program;

That any and all contracts or commitments made with the above-named
services providers are contingent upon receipt of a 2017 program year
Disaster Relief Fund award and dependent on the successful negotiation of a
contract with the service provider; and

That all funds will be used in accordance with all applicable federal, state,
local and programmatic requirements including but not limited to
procurement, environmental review, labor standards, real property
acquisition, and civil rights requirements.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 14t DAY OF FEBRUARY 2017.

ATTEST:

CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

By:

Kirk Jones, Mayor

By:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary




ITEM# 6

Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:

Exhibits: Spreadsheet giving four options
for Amendment,
Financial Report through December of
Prepared By: Jack Yates 2016-2917 fiscal year,

City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 2, 2017

Consideration of Amendment of 2016-2017 General Fund budget due to Kroger not opening.

Discussion

The Sales Tax figure in the approved budget is $1,650,000. My proposed amended sales tax
figure is $1,490,000. The actual sales tax received for last year was $1,400,000 -- so I feel
fairly confident going up $90,000 (7%) in sales tax for this year. That means a reduced
Revenue in the General Fund of $160,000.

On the expense side of the budget --. There is a $148,000 sales tax rebatement in the budget..
Eliminating that cost will leave $12,000 to be reduced from General Fund expenses to equal
the $160,000 revenue loss.

All of'this discussion excludes any revenue at all from the Kroger development for this fiscal
year.

There is basically, to my mind, four options to take regarding the $12,000 reduction of
expenses needed,

Option A, Chief Napolitano and I have already agreed that we can get by with only one
vehicle purchase for this year which has already happened at a cost of $31,500 - leaving a
balance of 31,500 in that line item — so if the $12,000 were to be taken from that item it would
leave $19,500 in that line item. However, the Chief and I have been discussing the possibility
of a Police Dept. Administrative Assistant which we both are in favor of — so the balance in
the vehicle could fund that position - so I would prefer Option B or C or D — which are:

Option B, take the reductions from election (assuming no election)..
If there is no city election, the savings would be $12,000 from the $16,000 line item budgeted.

Option C reduce Gas/Oil and Engineering.

Gas/oil for the first quarter is $3,907 so the projection for the year would be $16,000 plus
$3500 for possible increases resulting in a budget amount needed of $19,500 while there is
$29,500 budgeted for gas/oil leaving the reduction of $10,000 from the budget very viable.
For engineering there is $75,000 budgeted so a $2000 reduction should not result in a material
loss of services,



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 6


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Option D, is to not take any action, given that it is early in the fiscal year and that only
$12,000 is the amount to be cut from the $2,992,042 total General Fund budget — since the
sales tax rebatement will not be spent unless there is Kroger sales tax received —

with an assurance that the police vehicle will not be purchased.(thus assuring the $12,000
savings).This would eliminate the need/time/cost for a public hearing to amend the budget
and the documentation needed by the accountant to formally amend the budget — as to amend
the budget requires the same public information/hearings as its original passage.

All of the Options are shown on the attached spread sheet.
‘Also attached is the January financial report which includes through the December expenses,
one fourth of the fiscal year.

Reccomendation
Await the need for an election and if not needed, select Option B, or if an election is needed

select Option C

- My ultimate recommendation is Option D

Approved By

Department Manager

Date;

City Administrator

Jack Yates

Date: February 2, 2017




REVENUES
Acct. #
14600

EXPENSES
Option A
Acct. #

17500
17070

Option B
Acct. #
17500
16370

Option C
Acct. #
17500
16334
16322

Option D
17500

Budget Amendment for 2016-2017 Fiscal Year

Acct, Name Current Amount Proposed Amount
Sales Tax 51,650,000 S 1,490,000.00
Acct, Name Current Amount Proposed Amount
Sales Tax Rebatement S 148,000 S -
Police Car S 63,000 5 51,000
Acct, Name Curreht Amount Proposed Amount
Sales Tax Rebatement S 148,000 S -
Election S 16,000 5 4,000
Acct, Name Current Amount Proposed Amount
Sales Tax Rebatement S 148,000 S -
Gas/Oil S 29,500 5 19,500
Engineering S 75,000 S 73,000
Sales Tax Rebatement S 148,000 S -

Other savings/non-spent funds

Difference
5 160,000
Difference
S 148,000
S 12,000
Total S 160,000
Difference
S 148,000
S 12,000
5 160,000
Difference
S 148,000
S 10,000
S 2,000
S 160,000
S 148,000
S 12,000
S 160,000




$:21 PM
01/19/17

Accruat Basis

City of Montgomery - General Fund

Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All

Decemsber 2016

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income
14000.1 *
14103 -
14111
14320 -
14330 -
14331
14600 -

Taxes & I'ranchise Fees
Beverage Tax

* Franchise Tax

Ad Valorem Taxes
Penalties & Interest on Adv Tax

* Rendition Penalties

Sales Tax

Total 14000.1 - Taxes & Franchisc Fees

14000.2 -
14105 -
14146 -
14611 -
14612 -

Permits & Licenses

Building Permits

Vendor Permi(s

Sign Fee

Misc Permit Fees(ptats & Zoning

Total 14000.2 * Permits & Licenscs

14000.4 - Fees for Service
14380 - Community Bldg Rental
14381 - Kiosk Revenue
14385 - Right of Way Use Fees

Total 14000.4 - I'ees for Service

14000.5 - Court Fines & Forfeitures
1410% - Collection Fees
14102 - Asset Fortfeitures
14104 - Bond Fees (Dedicated)
14106 -
14110 -
14118 - OMNI
14120 - State - (Dedicated)
14125 - Warrant Fees
14126
14130 -

Fines

Accident Reports

Total 14000.5 - Court Fines & Forfeitures

14000.6 - Other Revenues
15380 * Unanticipated Inconie
15391 - Interest Income
15392 - Inferest on Investments

Total 14000.6 - Other Revenues
15350 - Proceeds from sales
Total Income

Expense
16000 + Personnel

16353.1 : Health Ins.
16353.4 + Unemployment Ins.
16353.5 - Workers Comp.
16353.6  Dental & Vision Insurance
16353.7 - Life & AD&D Insurance
16560 - Payroll Taxes
16600 - Wages
16600.1 - Gvertime
16620 - Retirement Expense

Total 16000 + Personnel

16001 - Communications
16338 + Advertising/Promotion

Child Belt/Salety (Dedicated)

+ Judicial Efficiency (Dedicated)

Dec 16 Budget $Over B... Oct-Dec.. YTDBu.. §OverB.. AnnunlBu.
37.50 1,000.00 ~062.50 37.50 1,000.,00 462,50 4,000,00
0.00 5,833.34 -5,833.34 5,502.57 17,499.94  -11,997,37 70,000,00
143,863.53  37,768.00 106,095.53 169,729.56 151,072.00 18,657.56  339,912.00
8.50 500,00 -491.50 299.55 750.00 -450.45 2,500.00
0.00 16.67 -16,67 0,00 49.97 -49.97 200.00
100,729.26  138,500.00 -37,770.74 327,427.03 4i2,500,00 -85,072,97 1,650,000,00
244,638.79 183,618.01 61,020.78 502,996.21 582,871.91 -7%,875.70  2,066,612.00
£1,705,15  10,833.34 871.81  34,498.05 32,499.94 1,998.11 130,000.00
0.00 B.34 -8.34 0.00 24,94 -24.94 100,00
0.00 125.00 -125.00 187.00 375.00 -188.00 1,500.00
1,013.15 166,67 846,48 147715 499.97 977.18 2,000.00
12,718.30 11,133.35 1,58495  36,162.20 33,399.85 2,762.35 133,600.00
65.00 483.34 -418.34 725.00 1,449.94 -724.94 5,800.00
0.00 2,50 -2.50 0.00 7.50 -7.50 30.00
0.34 229,17 -228.83 273,80 687.47 -413.67 2,750.00
65.34 715.0% -649.67 998.80 2,144.91 -1,146.11 8,580.00
2,353.52 2,000.00 353.52 7.615.35 6,000.00 1,615.35 24,000.00
0.00 91.67 -91.67 0.00 274.97 -274.97 1,100.00
0.00 .00 .00 0.00 -500.00 500,00 -500.00
21540 166.67 48.82 565.49 499,97 65.52 2,000.00
39,500.41  41,666.67  -2,166.26 131,763.23 124,999,597 6,763.26  500,000.00
254.71 166.67 88.04 755.45 490,97 25548 2,000.00
0.00 16,666.67 -16,666.67 0.00  49,999.97  -49,999.97  200,000.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.50 -12,50 50.00
137.63 166.67 -29.04 47276 49997 -27.21 2,000.00
30.00 16.67 1333 48.00 49,97 -1.97 200.00
4249176 60,948.69 -18,449.93 141,220.28 (82,337.29 -41,117.01 730,850.00
5,787.13 5,853.53
28.64 41.67 -13.03 178.4% 124,97 53.52 500.00
165.26 §3.34 8192 385.18 24994 135.24 1,000,00
5,981.03 125.01 5,856.02 6,417.20 374.91 6,042,29 1,500,00
0,00 *0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000,600  -10,000.00 10,000,600
305,895.22  256,533.07 49,362,15 687,794.6% BI1,128.87 -123,334.18 2,951,142.00
8,764,48 8,213.34 551,14 2339148 24,639.94 -1,248.46 98,560.00
101.82 413.35 -311.53 223.66 1,239.85 -1,016.19 4,960.00
1,441.98 1,659.18 -217.20 4,325.94 4,977.38 -651.44 19,910.00
535.58 950.01 -414.43 2,469.50 2,84991 -380.41 11,400.00
-23.52 120.85 -144.37 182,98 362,35 -179.37 1,450.00
6,739,79 6,832.52 -92.73  24,104.89  10,497.32 3,607.57 81,990.00
78,184.95 86,713.34 -8,528,39 22832242 260,139.94  -31,817.52 1,040,560.00
3,979.34 1,625.01 2,354,313 7,005.94 4,874.91 2,131.03 19,500.00
3,333.68 3,543.35 -209,67 9,592.39  10,629.85 -1,037.46 42,520.00
103,058.10  110,070.95 -7,0§2,85 299,619.20 330,21f.45 -30,592.25 1,320,850.00
658,19 583.34 74.85 1,395.68 3,749.94 -1,354,26 9,000.00

Page 1

ga ’ ()
Tt

i
|
;
|




121 PM City of Meontgomnery - General Fund

01/19/17 Profit & Loss Budget- Performance-All 0 -\—;,‘-\S
Accrual Basls December 2016 ?
Dee 16 Budget  $ Over B... Oct-Dec... YTDBu.. 3§ OverB.. Annuai Bu..
Tota] 16001 - Communieations 658,19 583.34 74.85 1,395.68 3,749.94 -2,354.26 9,000.00
16002 - Contract Services
16102 + General Consultant Fees 1,373.25 5,100.01 -3,726.76 5,386.50 15,299.91 -9,913.41 61,200.00
16220 - Onini Expense 0.00 291.67 -291.67 0.00 874.97 -874.97 3,500.00
16242 * Prosecutors Fees 900.00 958.34 -58.34 3,150.00 2,874.94 275.06 11,500,00
16280 - Mowing 6,666.67 7,083.34 -416.67 1828167  21,249.94 <2,968.27 85,000,00
10299 -« Tnspections/Permits 4,825.50 4,583.34 24216 11,317.50  13,749.94 -2,432.44 55,000.00
16310 - Judge's Fee 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00 18,000.00
16320 - Legal 806.49 3,166.67  -2,360.18 3,725.98 9,499.97 -5,773.99 38,000.00
16321 * Audit Fees 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 c
16322 - Engineering 000 625001 -6250.01 984450 1874991  -890541 7500000 &
16326 - Collection Agency Fees 0.00 2,500.00  -2,500,00 8,397.73 7,500.00 §97.73 30,000.00
16333 - Accounting Fees 9,588.40 6,583.34 3,005.06 2402842  19,749.94 4,278.48 79,000.00

16335 - Repairs & Maintenance
16335.1 - Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip

Tn

16334 - Gas/0Oil 1,574.27 2,458.34 -884.07 3,907.42 7,374.94 -3,467.52 29,500.00
16343 * Tractor & Mower 0.00 166.67 -166.67 0.00 499.97 -499.97 2,000.00
16357 - Auto Repairs 624.15 1,458.34 -834.19 5,099,55 4,374,94 724,61 17,500.00
16373 - Equipment repairs 452.97 541.67 -88.70 747.16 1,624.97 -877.81 6,500.00
16374 - Building Repairs-City Hall/Comm 664,74 1,541.67 -876.93 1,015.62 4,624.97 -3,609.15 18,500.00
16375 - Street Repairs - Minor
16375,1 - Streets-Preventive Maintenance 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00  10,975.00 4,500.00 6,475,00 18,000.00
16375 - Street Repairs - Minor - Other 143.88 1,250.00 -1,106.12 5,258.05 3,750.00 1,508.05 15,000.00
Total 16375 + Street Repairs - Minor 143.88 2,750.00 -2,006.12  16,233.05 8,250.00 7,983.05 33,000.00
16335,1 - Maintenance - Vehicles & Equip - Ot... 7.50 7.50
Total 16335.1 - Muintenance - Vehicles & Equip -+ 3,467.51 8,916.69 -5,449.18  27,01030  26,749.79 260.51 107,000,00
16335 « Repnirs & Maintenance - Other 547.08 1,775.00  -1,227.92 2,132.08 5,325.00 -3,192.92 21,300,00
Total 16335 - Repairs & Maintenance 4,014,59  10,691.69  -6,677.10  29,142.38  32,074.79 -2,932.41 128,300.00
16337 + Street Signs 0.00 541.67 -541,67 0.00 1,624.97 -1,624.97 6,500.00
16340 - Printing & Office supplies 2,079.50 666.68 1,412.82 2,416.28 1,999.88 416,40 8,000.00
16342 - Cemputers/Website 2,490.40 1,233.35 1,257.05 6,543.64 3,699.85 2,843.79 14,800.00
16350 - Postage/Delivery 658.07 441,68 216.39 658.07 1,324.88 -666.81 5,300.00
16351 - Telephone 1,526.39 2,658.34  -1,131.95 4,584.56 7,974.94 -3,390,38 31,900.00
16360 - Tax Assessor Fees 0.00 1,500.00  -1,500.00 222.87 4,500.00 -4,277.13 4,500.00 B
16370 - Election 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0,00 16,000.00 ‘-‘
17030 : Mobil Data Terminal 2,554.22 666.67 1,887.55 3,781.33 1,999.97 1,781.36 8,000.00
17031 - Police Officer Scheduling Serv 345.38 0.00 34538 376.29 2,600.00 -1,623.71 2,000.00
17040 - Computer/Technology 2,844,75 1,166.68 1,678.07 5372.21 3,499.88 1,872.33 14,000.00
17510 - State Portion of Fines/Payouts 50,938.75  16,666.67 34,272.08 5093875 4999997 938,78 200,000.00
Total 16002 - Coniract Services 93,112.36  74,250.15 18,862.21 192,668.68 224,748.65  -32,079.97 914,500.00
16003 - Supplies & Equipment
16244 - Radio Fees 0.00 416.67 -416.67 0.00 1,249.97 -1,249.97 5,000.00
16328 - Uniforms & Protective Gear 1,21£.26 1,333.34 -122.08 1,819.39 3,999.94 -2,180.55 16,000.00
16358 - Copicr/Fax Machine Lease 1,474.45 833.35 641.10 4,364.45 2,499.85 1,864.60 10,000,00
16460 - Operating Supplies (Office}
16460.1 * Streets nnd Drainage 0.00 291.67 -291.67 954,39 874,97 79.42 3,500.00
16460.2 * Cedar Brake Park 433.87 33334 100.53 i,540.81 999,94 540,87 4,000.00
16460.3 - Homeceming Park 56.54 500.00 -443.46 104,97 1,500.00 -1,395.03 6,000,00
16460.4 - Ferniand Park 28.97 250.00 -221.03 207.41 750.00 -542.59 3,000,00
16460.5 - Commumnity Building 0.00 416.67 416,67 1,146.99 1,249.97 -102.98 5,000.00
16460.6 - Tools, Ete 170.90 166.67 4.23 340.50 49997 -159.47 2,000.00
16460.7 - Memery Park 28.94 250,00 -221.06 1,232.69 750.00 482,69 3,000,00
16460 - Operating Supplics (Office) - Other 2,110.76 2,300.0% ~189.25 4,108.07 6,899.91 -2,791.84 27.600.00
Total 16460 - Operating Supplies (Office) 2,829.98 4,508.36 -1,678.38 9,635.83  13,524.76 -1,888.93 54,100.00
16503 + Code Enforcement Expenses 0.00 83.34 -B3.34 0.00 249.94 -249.94 1,000.00
17010 - Emergency Equipment 0.00 250,00 -250.00 0.00 750.00 -750.00 3,000.00
17050 - Radios .00 2,166.67 -2,106.67 0,00 6,499.97 -6,499.97 26,000.00

Page 2




1:21PH City of Montgomery - General Fund

01/19/17 Profit & Loss Budget Performaunce-All
Accrual Basls December 2016
Dee 16 Budget $ Over B... Oct-Dec.. YTDBu.. 5§ OverB.. AnnualBu..
17100 - Capital Purchase Furniture 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,200,000  -23,200.00 23,200.00
16003 - Supplies & Equipment - Other 34,15 583.34 -549.19 193,04 1,749.94 -1,556.93 7,000.00
Total 16003 - Supplies & Equipment 554984  10,175.07  -4,625.23  16,012,68  53,72437  -37,711.69 145,300.00
16004 - Staff Development
16241 - Police Training/Education 0.00 583.34 -583.34 155,25 1,749.94 -1,594.69 7,000.00
16339 - Dues & Subscriptions 200,00 166,67 3333 712.00 3,499.97 «2,787.97 5,000.00
16341 + Community Relations (Education} 161,24 266.68 -105.44 174.21 799.88 -625.67 3,200.00
16354 - Travel & Training {Travel) 1,233.42 1,541.68 -308.26 3,884.59 4,624 88 -740.29 18,500.00
16004 - Staff Development - Other 3.00 25.00
Tatal 16004 - Staff Development 1,594.66 2,558.37 -963.71 495105  10,674.67 -5,723.62 33,700.00
16005 - Maintenance
16228 - Park Maint-Memory Pk 0.00 708.34 -708.34 248,98 2,124.94 -1,875.96 8,500.00
16229 + Park Maint - Fernland 0.00 816.67 -816.67 49.98 2,449.97 -2,399,99 9,800.00
16230 - Park Maint-Cedar Brake Park 147.99 416.67 -268.68 2,118.40 1,249.97 868.43 5,000.00
16231 - Park Maint, - Homnecoming Park 0.00 208.34 -208.34 289.96 624.94 -334.98 2,500.00
Total 16005 - Mnintenanee 147.99 2,150,02  -2,002,03 2,707.32 6,449.82 -3,742.50 25,800.00
16006 - Tnsurance
16353.2 - Liability Tns. 1,792.16 1,385.01 407.15 5,376.48 4,154,91 1,221.57 16,620.00
16353.3 * Property Ins, 441.50 383.35 58,15 1,324.50 1, 149,85 174.65 4,600.00
‘Fotal 16006 * Insurance 2,233.66 1,768.36 465.30 6,700.98 5,304,76 1,396,22 21,220,00
16007 - Utilities
16351.1 - Utilities - Memory Park -Water -420.94 2,656.60
16351.2 - Utilities-Fernland Pk-Water -36.82 105.48
16352.0 ' Electronic Sign-City 4421 41.67 2.54 11931 124.97 -5.66 500.00
16352.1 - Street Lights 76.22 1,083.34 -1,007.k2 2,339.76 3,249.94 -9t0.18 13,000.00
16352.2 - Traflic Lights 28.55 100,00 -TEAS 81.03 300.00 -218.97 1,200.00
16352.3 - Cedar Brake Park 199.41 266.67 -67.26 658,15 799.97 -141.82 3,200,00
16352.4 - Homecoming Park 117.52 100.00 17.52 29529 300.00 -4.71 1,200.00
16352.5 - Fernland Park 294.49 258.34 3615 567.46 774,94 -207.48 3,100.00
16352.6 - Utilities - City Hall 722.10 666,67 5543 2,296.87 1,999.97 296,90 8,000.00
16352.7 » Utilities - Gas 132.65 100.00 32.65 210.60 300,00 -89.40 1,200,00
16352.8 - Utilities - Comm Center Bldg 579.08 625.00 -45.92 £,072.88 1,875.00 -802.12 7,500.00
16352.9 - Utilities-Memory Pk 0,00 1,250,00  -1,250,00 0,00 3,750,00 -3,750.00 15,000.00
16007 - Utitities - Other 73.42 73.42
Totul 16007 - Utilitics 1,809.89 4,491.69 -2,681.80 1047685  13,474.79 -2,997.94 53,900.00

16008 - Capital Qutiay
16233 - Cap Outlay- Com Building Proj

162331 - Trrigation System 0.00 134.84
16233 + Cap Outlay- Com Building Proj - Other 0.00 166,67 -166.67 0.00 499,97 -499.97 2,000.00
Teotal 16233 - Cap Outlay- Com Building Proj 0,00 166,67 -166.67 134.84 499,97 -365.13 2,000.00
17070 - Capital Qutlay - Police Cars
17070,1 - Emergeney Lights, Decals 0.00 2,083.34  -2,083.34 0.00 6,249.94 -6,249,94 25,000.00
17670.3 - Vid Tec - In Car 0,00 1,000.00  -1,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 12,000.00 A
17070 + Capital Outlay - Police Cars - Other 000 0.00 0.00 0.00  63,00000 -63,000.00 63,000.00 &—
Total 17070 - Capitnl Qutlay - Police Cars 0.00 3,083.34  -3,083.34 000 72,249.94  -72,249.94 100,000.00
17071 - Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip
17071.1 - Copsyne 0.00 541.67 -541,67 5,483.88 1,624,97 3,858.91 6,500.00
17071.2 - Radar 0.00 333.34 -3133.34 0.00 999.94 -999.94 4,000.00
17071.4 - Laser Fish (Software Equip) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 1,000.00
17071,6 - Investigative and Testing Equip 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 3,000.00
17071.7 - Ballistic Vests & Shields 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 5,000.00
17071 - Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip - Other 82.00 1,250,00  ~1,168.00 16400 11,45000 -11,286.00 22,700.00
Total 17071 + Cap Purchase - Computers/Eqip R2.00 2,125.01 -2,043.01 5,647.88 23,0749 «17,427.03 42,200.00
17071.5 - Patrol Weapons 0.00 333.34 -333.34 0.00 999.94 -999.94 4,000.00

Page 3




1:21 PM City of Montgomery -~ General Fund

01/19/17 Profit & Loss Budget Performance-All
Accrual Besls December 2016
77[)3167 o Buﬂg_p_t_____ $ OverB... Oct-Dec... YTDBu.. $OverB.. Annual Bu..
17072 + Capital Qutiay-PWorks Items 13,395.00 5,033.34 8361.66  52,106.61 15,099.94 37,006.67 60,400.00
17080 - Capital Qutlay-Improvements 0.00 R33.34 -5833.34 ) 10‘58515 2,499,094 R,085.21 10,000.00
Total 16008 - Capital Qutlay 13,477.00  11,575.04 1,901.96  68,47448 114,424.64 -45950.16  218,600.00
16009 - Miscellaneous Expenses
16590 - Misc. Expense 564.48 300.02 264.46 1,472.35 899.82 572,53 3,600.00
16009 « Miscellaneous Expenses - Other 128.00 1,056.70(?
Total 16009 * Miscellaneous Expenses 692.48 300.02 392.46 2,528.35 899.82 1,628.53 3,600.00
16010 - Contingency 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,00 -100.00 100.00
16500 + Leases - Parks and Recreation
16504 - Adams Park 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000 0.00 2,800.00
Total 16500 - Leases - Parks and Recreation 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,800.00
17500 - Sales Tax Rebatement o 000 12,333.34 -12,333,34 0,00 36,999.94  -36999.94 ]48,00_(_)_._99
Total Expense 22233417 2?0,256.35 -7,922.18 605,535.27 800,762.85 -195,227.58 2,497,370.00
Net Ordinary Income 83,561.05 26,276,772 57,284.33 82,259.42 10,366.02 71,893.40 53,772.00

Other Income/Expense
Other Income
14000.3 - Transfers In

14620.2 - Admin Transfer from MEDC 0.00 9,375.00  -9,375.00 0.00 9,375.00 -9,375.00 37,500.00
14620.4 - Admin Trf frown Court Security 000  850.00 -850.00 0.00 850.00 -850.00 3,400.00

Total 14000.3 - Transfers In 0.00  10,225.00 -10,225.00 000 1022500 -10,225.00 40,900.00
Total Other Income 0.00 10,225.00  -10,225.00 0.00 ) 10,225.00 -10,225.00 40,900.00
Net Other Income 0,00 10,225.00 -10,225.00 o O.QO 10,225.00  -10,225.00 40,900,00
Net Income 83,561.05  36,501.72  47,059.33  82,259.42  20,591.02 61,668.40 94,672.00

Page 4




ITEM# 7
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates Exhibits: memo from the city engineer
City Administrator
Date Prepared: February 4, 2017

Accepting the Certificate of Acceptance for Terra Vista subdivision

‘Discussion

Attached is a memo from the city engineer recommending approval of the Certificate of
Acceptance — signifying that all public improvements in the subdivision are placed according
to the plans and properly. This starts the one-year maintenance period backed by a
maintenance bond.

|

Approve Certificate of Acceptance as presented for Terra Vista subdivision

Approved By

Department Manager Date:
Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 4, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 7








ITEM#8
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: memo from the city engineer
Date Prepared: February 9, 2017

Accepting the certificate of acceptance for Waterstone, Section Two, subdivision

Discussion

Attached is a memo from the city engineer recommending approval of the certificate of
acceptance — — signifying that all public improvements in the subdivision are placed according
to the plans and properly. This starts the one-year, maintenance period, backed by a
maintenance bond.

Reccomendation
Approve Certificate of Acceptance as presented for Waterstone, Section Two, subdivision

Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 9, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM#8








ITEM# 9
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount;
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: memo from the city engineer
Date Prepared: February 9, 2017

Approval of a certificate of acceptance for lit a lift station serving Waterstone Section Two
and Terra Vista subdivision

Attached is a memo from the city engineer. The lift station is a system improvement placed by
the developer of Waterstone Section Two and Terra Vista subdivions. The lift station was

inspected. This starts the one-year maintenance period backed by a maintenance bond.

Approve the Certificate of Acceptance for the lift station serving Waterstone Section Two and
Terra Vista subdivisions

Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 9, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 9








ITEM# 10
Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: memo from the city engineer
Date Prepared: February 9, 2017

Approval of a feasibility study for tract of land located at the southwest corner of Highway
105 and Highway 2854.

Attached is a memo from the city engineer on this subject. The property owner has contacted
the city regarding development of this 26 acre tract. If approved the engineer will perform the
feasibility study which looks at the development cost for the city/developer,

On feasibility studies such as this the developer pays the city $5,000 in advance for the cost of
the study. If the study does not use all $5,000 the funds either stay in an escrow account for
this development or is returned to the developer.,

Approve the Feasibility Study after payment of the $5,000.

Jack Yates
City Administrator Date: February 9, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 10


L SQUARED ENGINEERING |imense
MUNICIPAL - COMMERCIAL - RESIDENTIAL | gt g 2008

Fehruary 8, 2017

City of Montgomery City Council
c/o Jack Yates, City Administrator
101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

Re: Utility Request for Master Planned Development located at FM 2854 and Highway 105
To Whom It May Concern:

The purpose of this letter is to formally request water and sewer utility service from the City of Montgomery for a
Master Planned Development located at FM 2854 and Highway 105 known as The Shoppes at Montgomery, This
development will entirely consist of commercial development that can include anchor retail facilities, medical,
restaurants, fast food, offices, and retail lease spaces, etc. The development will require the extension of some
public utilities throughout the development to service all tracts, The estimated capacity being requested for the
overall development is approximately 30,000 GPD of water and 25,000 GPD of sewer. | have attached a
preliminary land plan as a reference.

Please feel free to contact me directly if you have any questions,

Thank you,

Jonathan White, EIT
L Squared Engineering
lwhite@L2engineering.com

Attachment: Application of Service

The Shoppes at Montgomery

. Request for Utiities
02/09/2017 Cleveland — Mo

mery — The Woodlands Pagelof1




CITY OF MONTGOMERY

APPLICATION FOR S‘ERViCE/ANNEXATION
Type of Application: ___ Residential _>§_ Non-residential
Contact Name: Jonathan White (Representing Hartford Realty)
Name of Business;__L Squared Engineering
Address: 21123 Eva St #200 Montgomery, TX
Contact Info: Phone 936-647-0420  Faxother 832-795-1553 Email_white@L2engineering.com
Type of Business: _Mixed Use
Type of Service Requested {mark all that apply): X InCity ___ InET) ____ Beyond ETJ

Estimated Date Utility Construction is to Begin: _June 2017
Estimated Proposed Acreage in Development:__17 Acres
Estimated Total Taxable Value: 1,729,330 |and 8,000,000 improvements
Estimated Number of Lots: 6 Estimated Commercial Value;__8,500,000
Estimated Size(s) of Lots;_Varies 1 - 9 acres
Estimated Value of House and Lot Varies
Estimated Construction Cost for Public Facilities, if Applicable:_$100,000
Estimated Detention Basin Land Cost, if Applicable:
Type of Wastewater to be Put in System;_Commercial
Water Capacity Requested; 30,000 gpd Woastewater Capacity Requested:_ 25,000 gpd
Type of Streets: Public _X __Private
Name and Address of Title Holder to Referenced Property: Priscilla Rampy Estate

17442 N Edlridge Parkway Tomball, TX 77377

Status of Property: Acquired _x_Under Contract Optioned
Due diligence period closes on (date) N/A
7 7 o P
Signature of Applicant:____¢2» /1, 4,/ Date: _(2-05-2017

Relationship to Owner:_ Engineer

Please attach a metes and bounds description of the tract, fand plan, conceptual plat, and
location map along with applicable deposit made payable to the City, to the Application
indicating proposed location of project and boundaries of subject tract.

Applicant agrees that it shall notify the City if any of the above information {including
ownership of the tract} should change during the Application process,

City Contact Info:

City Administrator

City of Montgomery

101 OId Plantersville Road
Montgomery Texas 77356

Ph: (936} 597-6434

Fx: (936) 597-6437

Email: jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.u




For City Use Only

Engineer’'s Recommendation:
Operator’'s Recommendation:
Is Annexation Required:
Amount of Deposit Paid:

Amount of Service Recommended:

Additional Capacity Required: Water gpd Wastewater gpd
Cost of Additional Capacity: Water Wastewater
Fees Required: Capital Recovery Fee Capacity Fee

Tap Fee Plan Review Fees Inspection Fees

Additional Considerations:




ITEM# 11
Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date: February 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:

Exhibits: e-mail from LDC providing

summary of action requested,

letter from L.DC explaining action

requested,

Section of law allowing surcharge for

relocated roads,

Computations by LDC justifying

Surcharge,

Suggested letter from City to LDC

Prepared By: Jack Yates authorizing temporary surcharge
City Administrator

Date Prepared: January 31, 2017

Letter of authorization to LDC Gas Company for implementation of a temporary surcharge to
recover relocation costs due to relocation of Lone Star Bend Street — subject to Railroad
commission approval of Surcharge.

LDC has placed a gas line in the previously planned location of Lone Star Bend (Lone Star
Bend is the street off Lone Star Parkway that is planned to connect to Bois d’Arc Road in
order to have a connection from the Walden area to Lone Star Parkway) — but that street
location has moved to the east in the approved Preliminary Plat and that relocation will
continue in the Final Plat (expected in late February).

A new gas line is planned to be placed in the new location of Lone Star Bend.

The Railroad Commission has regulatory authority over natural gas company operations/rates.
The Railroad Commission has in its regulations an ability for an unexpected relocation due, in
this case, to a street relocation that is no fault of the gas company.

LDC is the provider of natural gas for the southern and central part of Montgomery.

LDC has filed with the Railroad Commission to add a surcharge to all of its customers in the
city, in order to recover its relocation expenses, for the new line.

LDC has, in its Computations page (attached) the cost of the new line to be $20.527 and they
are proposing to get that amount back by charging its 990 Montgomery customers $0.0462 per
thousand cubic feet of gas use for one vear. LDC estimates an average surcharge per customer
of $20.73 for the annual cost of the Surcharge,



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM# 11

shensley
Typewritten Text


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

I spoke with Larry Foerster and him and I both thought that this should come before the City
Council because it is a utility increase in a city regulated utility (via franchise).

Partly because of the relocation was no fault to L.DC and partly because of the relatively small
amount per customer to assist a utility company to provide gas service to the ¢ity, |
recommend sending the authorization letter to the Railroad Commission.

Approve the City Administrator to send the proposed letter to LDC,

Approved By

Department Manager

Date:

City Administrator

Jack Yates

Date: January 31, 2017




1/34/2017 The City of Monligomery Mail - Road Relocation Surcharge

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx,us>

bt ey

Road Relocation Surcharge
1 message

Larry Corley <lcorley@ldcgas.com> Tue, Jan 31, 2017 at 9:17 AM
To: "Yates, Jack" <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>
Cc: bbrown <bbrown@ldcgas.com>

Jack,

Pursuant to our conversation, | have attached a letter {with some details and documentation) requesting the City’s
authorization to alfow LDC to institute a temporary Surcharge to recover its costs associated with having to relocate its
existing natural gas main for the re-alignment of Lone Star Bend Road over to Bois D 'Arc Road. | have also taken the
liberty to draft a letter to be put on the City's letterhead and sent to LDC with authorization to proceed with the Surcharge
subject to the Railroad Commission’s final approval to alfow LDC to implement the Surcharge.

Just an observation based on our conversation, | would be surprised if our request was worthy of being added to the City
Council Agenda since the impact to 149 customers within the City is so small and as a Utility we are entitled to recover
our costs by state statute regulations.

if you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us.
Thanking you in advance,

Larry D. Corley

President
(936) 539-3500

{713) 826-7881 Cell

-D RE ALIGNMENT FOR LONE STAR BEND.PDF
— 2690K

hitps:/fm ail.google.com/mail/?ui=24ik=c96585b6a38view=ptésearch=inbox&th=159/51aaa63a889d&sim|= 1595 taaa63a889d 111




LDC, lc

A Local Distribution Company
6:20 Longmire Road | 9365393500
Conroe, Texas 77504 Fax §50-539-3501
' www.ldcgas.cam

January 31, 2017

Mr. Jack Yates

City of Momtgomery
PO Box 708
Montgomery, TX 77356

RE: Re- Alipnment of Lone Star Bend Road and
Relocation of Existing Natural Gas Main,

Dear M. Yates,

LDC, le (1.DC) has filed an informal request with the Texas Railroad Commission (RRC) to
institute a “onetime surcharge” to recover costs associated with the above referenced Re-
Alignment, Such surcharge is pursuant to the Texas Utility Code, Section 104.112.
SURCHARGE TO RECOVER RELOCATION COSTS (see attached copy).

The Commission has instructed LDC to seek & letter, from the City, anthorizing and/or no
objection 1o such surcharge and to attach the letier as an Exhibit to its formal filing. The
Surcharge will be spread out over 990 of LDC’s existing cuslomers (see attached Exhibit C).

There are 149 LDC customers (residential and/or amall commercial) Tocated within the city
limits. Each residential customer would nltimately, over a 12 month period, pay approximately
$15.00 to LDC. The commercial customers would pay approximately $100.00. As per the RRC
Section 104.112 rules, the surcharge is based on volume sold,

Your immediate attertion to this matter will be greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

. 9k
o -
C:Lar.ry [;,z;rley }

President

ATTACHEMENTS




cost of service standard prescribed by Section 104,051, administratively approve a
decrease in rates proposed by the applicant and agreed on by each party directly
affected, unless the regulatory authority determines that the proposed decrease is not
in the public interest. (V.A.C.S. Art. 1446e, Secs, 5.02 {e), 5.03 (b).)

S T s
s Fraimmsmm s,

I \ ‘%ec 104.112. SSURCHARGE TO RECOVER RELOCATION COSTS. (a)
“THis geetion apphes to a gas utility’s costs of relocating a facility to accomodate
construction or improvement of a highway, road, street, public way, or other public
work by or on behalf of the United States, this state, a political subdivision of this
state, or another entity having the power of eminent domain that are not reimbursed -

by a source other than as provided by this section.

T,

(b) A gas utility may recover its relocation costs to which this section
applies through a surcharge on gas velumes sold and transportled to
customers in the service area where the relocation occurred by
applying to each appropriate regulatory authority for a new rate
schedule or tariff. The gas utility is not required to file a statement
of intent to increase rates to institute the surcharge, and the other
provisions of this subchapter, other than appeal rights, do not apply
to institution of the surcharge.

(c) An application under Subsection (b) must irficlude sufficient
documentation to demonstrate:

(1) the requirement for each relocation;

(2) the entity requiring the relocation;

(3) costs incurred for relocation of comparable facilities;

(4) surcharge computations; and

(5) that reasonable efforts have been made to receive
reimbursement from the entity requiring the relocation, if
applicable.

(d) Not later than the 30" day after the date on which all of the
documentation required by Subsection (¢) has been received, the
regulatory authority shall administratively grant or deny the
application. Denial of the application must be based on finding that:

(1) the relocation was not necessary or required;
(2) the eosts of the relocation-were excessive or not supported;
(3) the utility did not pursue reimbursement from the entity
requiring the relocation if applicable;
(4) the surcharge is unduly discriminatory among customers or
classes of customers located in the service area; or
4-11




(5) the period over which the relocation costs are designed to be
recovered is less than one or more than three years.
_v,

~ SUBCHAPTERD-RATE CHANGES PROFGSFU"BY
T \\ """ ~COVMMISSION... o a
'.\ H

i servxce are unreasonable or in v1olrﬂ10n of law, the reouiatory authonty shall:

L]

(1 )\hter an order establishing the Just and reasonable rates to b

! Oiquxe\ii thﬁl'eﬂﬂ:el IIlChld]Ilg ma XIMUm or minimum I"ltesﬂ
:
and

(2) serve a topy of the order on’ thc gas utility.
AN e

(b) The rates set und \ﬁSubchilon (2) constitute the legal rates of the |
gas utility until chang(;d s, provzded by this subtitle. (V.A.C.S. Art
1446e, Sec. 5.07 (a).) >

e ok it RO 4

]
Sec 104. ]‘57 INVESTIGATING COS’”I\%OF OBTAINING SERVICE FROM
fANO"I HER SOURCE. If a gas ut' ility does nt}i produce the service that it §
thmbutes transmits, or fumlsl;e'; to the public 3"‘(3{ compensation, but obtains the {
5@W1ce from another source, the regulatory cluﬁlOi‘ﬁ} may investigate the cost of that
pmduchon it an uweo.txgatmn of the reasonableness o{the gas utility’s rates,
(VAL S. Art. [446e, Laec 5.07 (b)) \\
hY
* gUBCHAP TER Ef RATES FOR GOVE RNME‘NT AL T ENTITIES
Sec. 104.201. TRANSPORTATION RATES BETWEEN GkS UTILITY OR
MUN"ICIPALLY OWNED UTILITY AND STATE AGENCY. “%(a\it)
Notw;thstandmg Section 104,003 (b), absent a contract for transportation suwcu
bt‘tween ‘a state agency and a gas utility or municipally owned utility, th t\&:ai mad
' comm:bsmn not later than the 210" day after the date either party files a mquest o
set @ tr:msport'mon rate, shall establish the transportation rate for the state agency

"ic, Commission has exclusive original ]l!l‘lSdlCthIl to establish a tr c‘lElSpOltdtlon\r’itb
forr a-state.agency-under this-Seetom. .o

'é
- e s Y,




EXHIBIT C
COMPUTATIONS

Surcharge to Recover Relocation Costs

Numbers of Estimated Yearly Surcharge Total
Customers Consumption/per Time Period Volume in
Customer cef
990 X| 450 X T 1vyear 445,500

Surcharge Calculated as Follows

990 Customers x 450 ccf x 1 year = 445,500 ccf
$20,527.60 (Cost of Project)
445,500 cef (Total Estimated Usage during Time Period)

Total Surcharge per ccf
$0.0461

LDC, lic




citr L fferh wa

February 2017

LDC, lle

620 Longmire Rd.
Conroe, TX 77304
ATTN: Bobby Brown

RE: Aunthorization to Implement a Relocation
Surcharge for Lone Star Bend Road

Dear Mr. Brown,

The City of Montgomery, TX hereby authorizes LDC to implement a temporary surcharpe
pursuant to the Texas Utility Code, Section 104.112. SURCHARGE TO RECOVER
RELOCATION COSTS. Such Authorization is subject to the Texas Railroad Commission
issuing its final approval for LDC to institute the proposed surcharge. .

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely.

Jack Yates
City Administrator




	AGENDA - CITY COUNCIL 021417
	ITEM# 1 - ANNEXATION PUBLIC HEARING
	ITEM# 2 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM# 3 - RESOLUTION APPOINTING ADDRESSING AUTHORITY
	ITEM# 4 - RESOLUTION SELECTING GRANT WRITER AND ENGINEER FOR DISASTER RELIEF FUNDS
	ITEM# 5 - RESOLUTION AUTH SUBMISSION OF GRANT FOR BRIDGE REPAIRS
	ITEM# 6 - 2016-2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT
	ITEM# 6 - 2016-2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT PART A
	ITEM# 6 - 2016-2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT PART B
	ITEM# 6 - 2016-2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT PART C

	ITEM# 7 - CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE FOR TERRA VISTA SECTION 1 SUBDIVISION
	ITEM# 8 - CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE FOR WATERSTONE SECTION TWO
	ITEM# 9 - CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE FOR LIFT STATION FOR WATERSTONE SEC. 2 AND TERRA VISTA
	ITEM# 10 - AUTHORIZE A FEASIBLITY STUDY FOR THE SHOPPES OF MONTGOMERY
	ITEM# 11 - LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR LDC GAS COMPANY
	Additional Public Hearing Documents.pdf
	Legal Notice of Annexation Public Hearing #1
	Annexation Map




